AGENDA ITEM:
XI-F

Ordinance item F



STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA
COUNTY OF JASPER

ORDINANCE 0-2022-04

AN ORDINANCE
OF JASPER COUNTY COUNCIL

APPROVING A DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT FOR 95 LOGISTICS
CENTER PURSUANT TO THE SOUTH CAROLINA LOCAL
GOVERNMENT DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT ACT AND ARTICLE IV,
TITLE 20 OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF JASPER COUNTY, AND
AUTHORIZING THE CHAIRMAN OF JASPER COUNTY COUNCIL TO
EXECUTE SAID DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT
WHEREAS, the South Carolina Local Government Development Agreement Act,
South Carolina Code of Laws, Title 6, Chapter 31 (1976, as amended) (the “Act”),
authorizes local governments to enter into development agreements with a developer as

therein defined; and

WHEREAS, Jasper County Council (“Council”), the governing body of Jasper
County, South Carolina (the “County” has adopted Article IV, Title 20 of the Code of
Ordinances of Jasper County governing Jasper County’s participation in development

agreements (the “Ordinance”); and

WHEREAS, SL Hardeeville Industrial Park LLC, its successors or assigns has an

equitable interest in certain lands suitable for development; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Act and the Ordinance, the County is authorized to
enter into binding development agreements with entities having legal or equitable
interest in real property; and

WHEREAS, the County and the Owner have now concluded their negotiations with

respect to the terms for a development agreement for the real property subject to the

development agreement; and

Third Reading May 2, 2022



WHEREAS, subject to the successful sale of the Property to SL Hardeeville
Industrial Park LLC, the County, acting through the terms of this Ordinance, has
determined to accept the terms and conditions of the Development Agreement by and
between the County and SL Hardeeville Industrial Park LLC, the form of which is
attached hereto as Exhibit A; and

WHEREAS, the County has provided for and held the statutorily required public
hearings, finds that the development agreement is consistent with the Comprehensive
Plan for Jasper County, as amended, and that approval of the development agreement

would be in the best interests of the County.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED by the Jasper County Council in

council duly assembled and by the authority of the same:

1. The Development Agreement, in substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit
A, with such minor or grammatical changes as the Chairman of Jasper County Council
shall approve upon the advice of the County Attorney and County Administrator, her
execution of a definitive Development Agreement to be conclusive evidence of such

approval, is hereby approved.

2. The Development Agreement, in substantially the same form attached hereto as
Exhibit A, shall be executed by the Council Chairman and delivered on behalf of the
County by the County Administrator, and the Clerk to Council is authorized to attest the
signature of the Chairman of the Jasper County Council. The consummation of the
transactions and undertakings described in the Development Agreement, and such
additional transactions and undertakings as may be determined necessary by the

County Administrator to be necessary to fully implement the Development Agreement

are hereby approved. However, it is specifically recited that the provisions of

the Development Agreement are expressly intended for the benefit of the
Owner/Developer SL. Hardeeville. L1.C. To the extent the Prope is not

Third Reading May 2, 2022



conveyed to the Owner/Developer by the current legal owner by September
15, 2022, then the Development Agreement shall be void, regardless of any

execution by the Council Chairmanand delivery by the County
Administrator on behalf of the County.

3. If any one or more of the provisions of this Ordinance should be contrary to law,
then such provision shall be deemed severable from the remaining provisions, and
shall in no way affect the validity of the other provisions of this Ordinance.

4. This ordinance shall take effect upon approval by Council.

JASPER COUNTY COUNCIL

By:

Barbara Clark, Chairperson

ATTEST:

Wanda Simnions, Clerk to Council

First Reading: 02.07.2022

Second Reading: 03.21.2022

Public Hearings: 02.22.2022;03.07.2022;03.21.2022 and 05.02.2022
Third Reading and Adoption: 05.02.2022

It is required that the Development Agreement be attached as Exhibit A.

Reviewed for form and draftsmanship by the Jasper County Attorney:

David Tedder Date

Third Reading May 2. 2022



EXHIBIT A

95 Logistics Center Development Agreement

Third Reading May 2, 2022



HARDEEVILLE TRACT
PROPERTY LINE DESCRIPTION

ALL THAT TRACT OR PARCEL OF LAND LYING AND BEING IN JASPER COUNTY, SOUTH
CAROLINA, AND BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

COMMENCING AT THE INTERSECTION OF THE EASTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY OF U.S. HIGHWAY
17, AK. A, WHYTE HARDEEVILLE BOULEVARD (R/W VARIES) AND THE SOUTHERLY RIGHT-
OF-WAY OF U.S. HIGHWAY 278;

THENCE IN A SOUTHERLY DIRECTION ALONG SAID EASTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY +/-925 FEET
TO A POINT;

SAID POINT BEING THE POINT OF BEGINNING;

THENCE LEAVING SAID EASTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY, SOUTH 79 DEGREES 18 MINUTES 48
SECONDS EAST, 19.16 FEET TO A POINT;

THENCE, SOUTH 20 DEGREES 06 MINUTES 56 SECONDS WEST, 52.11 FEET TO A 1/2" REBAR;
THENCE, SOUTH 57 DEGREES 40 MINUTES 57 SECONDS EAST, 50.04 FEET TO A 1/2" OPEN TOP
PIPE;

THENCE, NORTH 23 DEGREES 34 MINUTES 14 SECONDS WEST, 70.82 FEET TO A 1/2" OPEN TOP
PIPE;

THENCE, SOUTH 87 DEGREES 40 MINUTES 32 SECONDS EAST, 358.92 FEET TO A 3"
MONUMENT;

THENCE, SOUTH 77 DEGREES 42 MINUTES 18 SECONDS EAST, 1032.99 FEET TO A 3
MONUMENT;

THENCE, NORTH 16 DEGREES 02 MINUTES 41 SECONDS EAST, 375.96 FEET TO A R/W
MONUMENT;

THENCE, NORTH 15 DEGREES 55 MINUTES 48 SECONDS EAST, 15.77 FEET TO A POINT ON THE
WESTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY OF INTERSTATE 95 (350° R/W);

THENCE ALONG SAID WESTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY, ALONG A CURVE TO THE RIGHT, AN ARC
DISTANCE OF 146.89 FEET, SAID CURVE HAVING A RADIUS OF 646.47 FEET AND BEING
SUBTENDED BY A CHORD OF 146.58 FEET, AT SOUTH 01 DEGREES 13 MINUTES 54 SECONDS
EAST, TO A R/W MONUMENT;

THENCE, SOUTH 04 DEGREES 19 MINUTES 09 SECONDS WEST, 957.34 FEET TO A 5” R/W
MONUMENT;

THENCE ALONG A CURVE TO THE RIGHT, AN ARC DISTANCE OF 1427.77 FEET,

SAID CURVE HAVING A RADIUS OF 5473.90 FEET AND BEING SUBTENDED BY A CHORD

OF 1423.72 FEET, AT SOUTH 11 DEGREES 43 MINUTES 32 SECONDS WEST, TO A 5” R/W
MONUMENT;

THENCE, SOUTH 19 DEGREES 05 MINUTES 34 SECONDS WEST, 2956.64 FEET TO A 5” R/'W
MONUMENT;

THENCE, SOUTH 46 DEGREES 31 MINUTES 05 SECONDS WEST, 262.70 FEET TO A POINT;
THENCE LEAVING SAID WESTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY, ALONG A CURVE TO THE LEFT, AN ARC
DISTANCE OF 1774.49 FEET, SAID CURVE HAVING A RADIUS OF 4491.08 FEET AND BEING
SUBTENDED BY A CHORD OF 1762.97 FEET, AT NORTH 78 DEGREES 54 MINUTES 07 SECONDS
WEST, TO A POINT ON THE SOUTHEASTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY OF MCTEER STREET (40’ R/W);
THENCE ALONG SAID SOUTHEASTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY, NORTH 52 DEGREES 19 MINUTES 05
SECONDS EAST, 253.17 FEET TO A 4” MONUMENT:

THENCE, NORTH 40 DEGREES 19 MINUTES (8 SECONDS EAST, 423.84 FEET TO A 47
MONUMENT;

THENCE, NORTH 22 DEGREES 30 MINUTES 04 SECONDS EAST, 154.89 FEET TO AN AXLE;
THENCE LEAVING SAID SOUTHEASTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY, NORTH 61 DEGREES 02 MINUTES
25 SECONDS WEST, 1012.55 FEET TO A 1/2" OPEN TOP PIPE ON SAID EASTERLY RIGHT-OF-
WAY;



THENCE ALONG SAID EASTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY, NORTH 32 DEGREES 07 MINUTES 56
SECONDS EAST, 131.55 FEET TO A 1/2" OPEN TOP PIPE;

THENCE LEAVING SAID EASTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY, SOUTH 60 DEGREES 06 MINUTES 04
SECONDS EAST, 177.80 FEET TO A POINT;

THENCE, NORTH 32 DEGREES 20 MINUTES 09 SECONDS EAST, 1716.00 FEET TO A POINT:
THENCE, NORTH 55 DEGREES 45 MINUTES 14 SECONDS WEST, 183.32 FEET TO A 3"
MONUMENT ON SAID EASTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY:

THENCE ALONG SAID EASTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY, NORTH 32 DEGREES 08 MINUTES 19
SECONDS EAST, 132.77 FEET TO A 4” MONUMENT;

THENCE LEAVING SAID EASTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY, SOUTH 58 DEGREES 05 MINUTES 12
SECONDS EAST, 178.44 FEET TO A POINT;

THENCE, NORTH 31 DEGREES 53 MINUTES 57 SECONDS EAST, 516.83 FEET TO A 1/2" OPEN
TOP PIPE;

THENCE, NORTH 22 DEGREES 11 MINUTES 45 SECONDS EAST, 143.68 FEET TO A 1/2" OPEN
TOP PIPE;

THENCE, NORTH 67 DEGREES 35 MINUTES 32 SECONDS WEST, 185.68 FEET TO A POINT ON
SAID EASTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY:

THENCE ALONG SAID EASTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY, NORTH 23 DEGREES 03 MINUTES 29
SECONDS EAST, 131.80 FEET TO A 4” MONUMENT;

THENCE LEAVING SAID EASTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY, SOUTH 68 DEGREES 29 MINUTES 21
SECONDS EAST, 206.27 FEET TO A 1/2" OPEN TOP PIPE;

THENCE, NORTH 22 DEGREES 15 MINUTES 24 SECONDS EAST, 659.95 FEET TO AN AXLE;
THENCE, NORTH 67 DEGREES 06 MINUTES 32 SECONDS WEST, 205.04 FEET TO A 4”
MONUMENT ON SAID EASTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY;

THENCE ALONG SAID EASTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY, NORTH 22 DEGREES 22 MINUTES 40
SECONDS EAST, 131.32 FEET TO A 1/2" OPEN TOP PIPE;

THENCE LEAVING SAID EASTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY, SOUTH 68 DEGREES 59 MINUTES 09
SECONDS EAST, 220.67 FEET TO A POINT;

THENCE, NORTH 22 DEGREES 15 MINUTES 34 SECONDS EAST, 792.30 FEET TO A POINT:
THENCE, NORTH 69 DEGREES 00 MINUTES 41 SECONDS WEST, 219.84 FEET TO A 1/2" OPEN
TOP PIPE ON SAID EASTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY;

THENCE ALONG SAID EASTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY, NORTH 22 DEGREES 25 MINUTES 02
SECONDS EAST, 70.01 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING:

SAID TRACT OR PARCEL CONTAINING 226.94 ACRES



FTNAIICEYH 40 ALD 3HL NI GLLY20T 3 |

SND].I.[\'IUS ADOTONHOAL NOILDY 'l\'t;».., 4

0d AJAHNS AUVANNOA

""’a?ﬂfm!-&ni‘ ‘is"é ey YATIONYS oS ALiNeD dadsye Ht‘ I,é;’ '%E

— —
—_———
—
—_—

|4 a'%u 3.%5; Al

SHEET 1 OF 2




B WY SO e eeeeee
T i -
Pos wiwwy =unases T
e e s W TS - P -
- seevees B P et

TS =iasses we S 0 e e S
Tomwn s e @ proyya -y
1 sjasmy wenrer e
— e MR A e B
Y pe—— L t
- e Vo TS e ¥
[ FLEFER ]

0 ¥ I Lo K00 ¥ IROT 'Y JNOY 000Y 9 ORIV B ARCWONY S

LR
M 20 L0 BROHLIONOS KIPE W0 WIAYWIWLHOO TR LI 40 TSIV
T VO XOALEMT B4, £TUN 0% §300 [Vid i RONGY ‘i 14 904
I} T NI, '] KV M (Grtarh SIS LUNSTS 80 WOUVIEIbe
& WO 0 ENARING OH AL SR ¥ 50N B T (P
= “RRTING QRNCED WINOTRIOH JAY MM WeoHS SXavIsT (5
. TR U b 0 Bna ssieth Mweetiy 20
T TR T 4 By TOHLON KO ifid AN oW IRINW MBI T
c TIANOR SNG4 ANGACH 04 HIN TRLIWSLICO GRY COBMEIPY CIE)
- eI Stunsia Com 30 DbV B s COURO W Sovi 1YW B84 (0
WIS THAL Y LI S0 S0 W KN I
LA T 10 L) B /O LOMSTINIE) B 01 i

Wirtey G AP Y [V 2, ) RSN SIS S L
—— g ]
.....L...& > o LA Y4 T LNDRIOR TR0 B4 I B DR [
{ ..p\.-....« TOHLI JARTHO0T THL AB GIOFROLI) S ian {1
- =

il

o, o/ | 2D

= {?:
ewey

S

ol
o
e

YNIIOHYD HANOS ALNNOD MALEYE NI

¥ ETHATEGHVH 40 AL FHL NI @RLYIOT

SHOELTOS ADOTONHDAL NOLLOY
HOd AZAHNE AUVANNOH

] [T
“RORELIEN F)
X [
] Cin
Al SOV 750
] win
— T Iy
LHPLETH 1N f
Lrashaw L3
[ ] [T ]
d ALY w

Sl i ke

=t 4 SOMIABRAMNMOE CISIVTI

AHTHS




STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT

—

COUNTY OF JASPER ) 95 LOGISTICS CENTER

This Development Agreement ("Agreement") is made and entered this day of
, 2022, by and between SL Hardeeville Industrial Park LLC ("Owner"), and the
governmental authority of Jasper County, South Carolina ("County").

WHEREAS, the legislature of the State of South Carolina has enacted the "South Carolina
Local Government Development Agreement Act" (the "Act") as set forth in Sections 6-31-10
through 6-31-160 of the South Carolina Code of Laws (1976), as amended; and,

WHEREAS, the Act recognizes that "The lack of certainty in the approval of development
can result in a waste of economic and land resources, can discourage sound capital improvement
planning and financing, can cause the cost of housing and development to escalate, and can
discourage commitment to comprehensive planning." {Section 6-31-10 (B)(1)); and,

WHEREAS, the Act also states: "Development agreements will encourage the vesting of
property rights by protecting such rights from the effect of subsequently enacted local legisiation
or from the effects of changing policies and procedures of local government agencies which may
conflict with any term or provision of the Development Agreement or in any way hinder, restrict, or
prevent the development of the project. Development Agreements will provide a reasonable
certainty as to the lawful requirements that must be met in protecting vested property rights, while
maintaining the authority and duty of government to enforce laws and regulations which promote
the public safety, health, and general welfare of the citizens of our State." [Section 6-31-10 (B)(6)];
and,

WHEREAS, the Act further authorizes local governments, including County governments,
to enter Development Agreements with owners to accomplish these and other goals as set forth in
Section 6-31-10 of the Act; and,

WHEREAS, Owner will acquire approximately 226.94 acres, generally to be known as 95

Logistics Center, proposes to develop, or cause to be developed therein distribution center uses,
related warehousing and light industrial uses, including accessory and complimentary uses as

1 April 18, 2022



described in the Planned Development District Zoning and Conceptual Master Plan adopted
herewith and attached as an Exhibit hereto; and,

WHEREAS, the County seeks to protect and preserve the natural environment and to
secure for its citizens quality, well planned and designed development and a stable and viable tax
base; and,

WHEREAS, the County finds that the program of development proposed by Owner for this
Property is consistent with the County 's comprehensive land use plan; and will further the health,
safety, welfare and economic well-being of the County and its residents; and,

WHEREAS, the program for development of the Property presents an unprecedented
opportunity for the County to secure quality planning and growth to protect the environment and
strengthen and revitalized the tax base; and,

WHEREAS, this Development Agreement is being made and entered between Owner and
the County, under the terms of the Act, for the purpose of providing assurances to Owner that it
may proceed with its development plan under the terms hereof, as hereinafter defined, consistent
with its approved Planned Development District (PDD) plan (as hereinafter defined) without
encountering future changes in law which would materially affect the ability to develop under the
plan, and for the purpose of providing important protection to the natural environment and long
term financial stability and a viable tax base to the County, and for the purpose of providing
certain funding and funding sources to assist the County in meeting the service and infrastructure
needs associated with the development authorized hereunder:

WHEREAS, The County conducted public hearings regarding its consideration of this
Agreement on February 22, 2022 and March 7, 2022, after publishing and announcing notice, in
accordance with the Act;

WHEREAS, County Council adopted Ordinance Number 2022-10 on , 2022,
(a) determining that this Agreement is consistent with the County Comprehensive Plan, the Act,
and the Current Regulations of the County, and (b) approving this Agreement. A copy of the
Ordinance is attached hereto as Exhibit E, and incorporated herein by reference.

2 April 18, 2022



NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the terms and conditions set forth herein, and
other good and valuable consideration, including the potential economic benefits to both the
County and Owner by entering this Agreement, and to encourage well planned development by
Owner, the receipt and sufficiency of such consideration being hereby acknowledged, the County
and Owner hereby agree as follows:

L INCORPORATION.
The above recitals are hereby incorporated into this Agreement, together with the
South Carolina General Assembly findings as set forth under Section 6-31-10(B) of the Act.

tl. DEFINITIONS.
As used herein, the following terms mean:

"Act" means the South Carolina Local Government Development Agreement Act, as
codified in Sections 6-31-10 through 6-31-160 of the Code of Laws of South Carolina (1976), as
amended; incorporated herein by reference.

“Adjacent Land” shall mean any real property adjacent to the 95 Logistics Center.

“Agreement” shall mean this Development Agreement as amended by the County and
Developer in writing from time to time.

“Association” shall mean one (1) or more property owners’ associations established to
maintain portions of the Property.

“BJWSA” shall mean the Beaufort/Jasper Water and Sewer Authority, its successors or
assigns.

“County” shall mean Jasper County, South Carolina.

“Current Legal Owner” means Eagle Associates of Niagara Frontier, Inc., a New York
Corporation who has contracted to sell to Owner as defined below.

3 April |8, 2022



“Developer” means Owner and all successors in title or lessees of the Owner who
undertake Development of the Property who are transferred in writing from the Owner portions of
the Development Rights.

"Development” means the development of portions of the Property and construction of
improvements thereon as contemplated in the Zoning Regulations.

“Development Fees” or “Developer Fees” shall have the meaning set forth in
Paragraph X.1.

"Development Rights" means Development undertaken by the Owner or Developers in
accordance with the Zoning Regulations and this Development Agreement.

“95 Logistics Center”, “PDD", “Project” or “Property” means that certain tract of land
described on Exhibit A, as may be amended with the Agreement of the County and Owner.

"Owner" means SL Hardeeville Industrial Park LLC, its corporate successors and any
assignee, whereby such interest is assigned in whole or in part in writing. Owner has a present
equitable interest in the Property by virtue of a contract to purchase with Current Legal Owner.

“PDD Plan” shall mean the Conceptual Master Plan attached to the Planned
Development District as same may be modified by agreement of the Owner and the County.

“Planned Development District” or “PDD Ordinance” means the PDD approved by the
Jasper County on , 2022, attached hereto as part of Exhibit B.

"Term" means the duration of this agreement as set forth in Section 11l hereof.

"Zoning Regulations™” means the PDD establishing a Planned Development District for
the Property, and all the attachments thereto, including but not being limited to the PDD Plan, all
narratives, applications, and site development standards thereof (a copy of all of which is attached
hereto marked Exhibit C and incorporated herein by reference), all as same may be hereafter
amended by mutual agreement of the County and the Owner, this Development Agreement, and
the Jasper County Development Ordinance(s) being codified with Municode® and current on
Municode® through Supplement No. 3 as of June 21, 2021 as amended through the date of this

4 April 18, 2022



Agreement except as the provisions thereof may be clarified or modified by the terms of the PDD
and this Agreement.

. TERM.
The term of this Agreement shall commence on the date this Agreement is

executed by the County and Owner and terminate ten (10) years thereafter; provided however,
that the terms of this Agreement may be considered by the County, in its discretion, for an
extension of the Term in accordance with §6-31-60 of the Act absent a material breach of any

terms of this agreement by the Owner or any Developer during the initial term, or any subsequent
extension.

Iv. DEVELOPMENT OF THE PROPERTY.

The Property shall be developed in accordance with the Zoning Regulations and
this Agreement. All costs charged by or to the County for reviews required by the Jasper County
Zoning Ordinance shall be paid by the Owner or Developer or other party applying for such review
as generally charged throughout the County for plan review. The County shall, throughout the
Term, maintain or cause to be maintained, a procedure for the processing of reviews as
contemplated by the Zoning Regulations and this Agreement.

Whenever expressed or implied substantive provisions of this Agreement are inconsistent
with the applicable standards set forth in the Zoning Regulations as defined above, the standards
set forth in the Zoning Regulations and the standards set forth in this Agreement shall, to the
extent possible, be considered in pari materia to give effect to both the Zoning Regulations and
this Agreement; provided, however, that nothing in this section is intended to revoke or repeal the
review, variance, special exception, or appeal authority of other bodies contained in Code of Laws
of South Carolina § 6-29-800 or in the Zoning Regulations.

V. CHANGES TO ZONING REGULATIONS.

The Zoning Regulations relating to the Property subject to this Agreement shali not
be amended or modified during the Term, without the express written consent of the Owner,
except in accordance with the procedures and provisions of § 6-31-80 (B) of the Act, which Owner
shall have the right to challenge. Owner does, for itself and its successors and assigns, including
Developers and notwithstanding the Zoning Regulations, agrees to be bound by the following:

5 April 18, 2022



1. The Owner shall be required to notify the County, in writing, as and when
Development Rights are transferred to any other party. Such information shall include the identity
and address of the acquiring party, a proper contact person, the location and number of acres of
the Property transferred, and the number of residential units and/or commercial acreage and
associated square footage, as applicable, subject to the transfer. Developers transferring
Development Rights to any other party shall be subject to this requirement of notification, and any
entity acquiring Development Rights hereunder shall be required to file with the County an
acknowledgment of this Agreement and a commitment to be bound by it.

2. The Owners and Developers, and their respective heirs, successors and
assigns agree that all Development, with the exception of irrigation, incidental maintenance
facilities, earthwork and similar amenities which exist from time to time, and facilities existing at
the date of this Agreement will be served by potable water and sewer prior to occupancy, except
as otherwise provided herein for temporary use, temporary being defined as one year or less.
Septic tanks and/or wells may be allowed with the permission of BJWSA where there is a specific
finding that such use for specific portions of the Property will comply with the overall
environmental standards.

3. Building Codes and Laws Other Than Land Use Regulations. The Owner,
notwithstanding any provision which may be construed to the contrary in this Agreement, must
comply with any building, housing, electrical, mechanical, plumbing and gas codes subsequently
adopted by the County or other governmental entity, as authorized by Chapter 9 of Title 6 of the
South Carolina Code. This Agreement shall not be construed to supersede or contravene the
requirements of any building, housing, electrical, mechanical, plumbing and gas codes
subsequently adopted by the County or other governmental entity, as authorized by Chapter 9 of
Title 6 of the South Carolina Code. The provisions of this Agreement are not intended, nor should
they be construed in any way, to alter or amend in any way the rights, duties and privileges of the
County to exercise governmental powers and pass laws not applicable to Development of the
Real Property including, but not limited to, the power of eminent domain and the power to levy
and collect taxes; provided, however, that Laws applicable to the Development of the Property
shall be subject to Sections IX and XVIII (a).

4. Additional buffers. In order to provide enhanced visual buffering from
Highway 17 and adjacent residential properties, the Project shall provide for the preservation and
enhancement of the existing trees and understory vegetation for a depth of 100 feet from the edge
of the Highway 17 road right of way. Along the adjacent residential properties to the South, there

6 April 18, 2022



shall be a 50 foot buffer with sound wall fencing and landscaping to provide opacity blocking the
view of the structures and outdoor storage areas from view from the adjacent residential
properties, and a landscaping plan to achieve this screening requirement shall be submitted for
approval by the County Administrator, which approval shall not be unreasonably withheid. Buffers
along 1-95 shall be 35 feet.

VL. DEVELOPMENT SCHEDULE.

The Property shall be developed in accordance with the development schedule,
attached as Exhibit D, or as may be amended by Owner or Developer(s) in the future to reflect
actual market absorption. Pursuant to the Act, the failure of the Owner and any Developer to
meet the initial development schedule shall not, in and of itself, constitute a material breach of this
Agreement. In such event, the failure to meet the development schedule shall be judged by the
totality of circumstances, including but not limited to the Owners and Developer(s) good faith
efforts to attain compliance with the development schedule. These schedules are planning and
forecasting tools only, and shall not be interpreted as mandating the development pace initially
forecast or preventing a faster pace if market conditions support a faster pace. The fact that
actual development may take place at a different pace, based on future market forces, is
expected and shall not be considered a default hereunder. Development activity may occur faster
or slower than the forecast schedule, as a matter of right, depending upon market conditions.
Furthermore, periodic adjustments to the development schedule which may be submitted
unilaterally by Owner / Developers in the future shall not be considered a material amendment or
breach of the Agreement.

VIl. DENSITY.

Uses and density on the Property shall be the densities and uses as set forth in the
Planned Development District approval, Initial Master Plan, and as set forth below:

" Apnl 18, 2022



Up to a maximum of 2,600,000 square feet of distribution center, warehouse, and other
related accessory and light industrial uses. The attached PDD depicts the initially planned lay out
and expected uses and the expected mix and general location of allowed uses, however, so long
as the total square footage of allowed uses does not exceed 2,600,000 square feet, the Owner
shall be allowed to alter location and product mix among all allowed uses under the PDD, based
upon ongoing project planning and market conditions. Any such changes to exact location,
building size, or product mix shall not be considered a material amendment hereto, or an
amendment to the attached PDD or the subsequent Initial Master Plan, so long as the total
allowed density is not exceeded. Such minor changes will be approved at the staff review level.

VIil. RESTRICTED ACCESS
The Owner and/or each Developer shall have the right (but not the obligation) to

restrict access within or into and out of the Property as long as such limited access does not
adversely affect in any material respect adjacent traffic patterns located on public rights-of-way.
Notwithstanding, there are required restrictions on truck traffic movements contained in Article XI
(N) below.

IX. EFFECT OF FUTURE LAWS.

Owner and Developers shall have vested rights to undertake Development of any
or all of the Property in accordance with the Zoning Regulations, as defined herein and modified
hereby, and as may be modified in the future with the approval of the Owner pursuant to the terms
hereof, and of this Agreement for the entirety of the Term. Future enactments of, or changes or
amendments to the County ordinances, including zoning or development standards ordinances,
which conflict with the Zoning Regulations shall not apply to the Property unless the procedures
and provisions of §6-31-80 (B) of the Act are followed, which Owner shall have the right to
challenge. Notwithstanding the above, the Property will be subject to then current fire safety
standards and state and/or federal environmental quality standards of general application.

X. INFRASTRUCTURE AND SERVICES
The County and Owner recognize that the majority of the direct costs associated
with the Development of the Property will be borne by the Owner and Developers, and many other
necessary services will be provided by other governmental or quasi-governmental entities, and
not by the County. For clarification, the parties make specific note of and acknowledge the
following:

8 April 18, 2022



A. Private Roads. All roads within the Property shall be constructed by the
Owner, Developer or other parties and maintained by such party(ies) and/or Association(s), or
dedicated for maintenance to other appropriate entities. The County will not be responsible for
the construction of any private roads within the Property, unless the County specifically agrees to
do so in the future.

B. Public Roads. All public roads outside the Property that serve the
Property are under the jurisdiction of the State of South Carolina regarding access, construction,
improvements and maintenance. Owner acknowledges that it must comply with all applicable
state statues and rules and regulations of the South Carolina Department of Transportation or its
successor regarding access and use of such public roads. Developer shall be responsible for the
provision of funds for the construction of improvements to Highway 17 and John Smith Road in
addition to property access improvements, all as required by SCDOT or Jasper County, as
applicable, in conjunction with County approved traffic mitigation plans. Upon Completion of
construction of any such improvements within the SCDOT right of way, and acceptance by
SCDOT, the SCDOT shall maintain all roadway improvements within the public road right of way.
Further provisions regarding traffic management and mitigation are contained in Article XI (N)
hereinbelow.

C. Potable Water. Potable water will be supplied to the Property by BJWSA
or some other legally constituted public or private provider allowed to operate in the County. The
County shall not be responsible for any construction, treatment, maintenance or costs associated
with water service to the Property unless the County elects to provide such services with the
agreement of the applicable utility authority then providing such service to the Property. Owner
will construct or cause to be constructed all related infrastructure improvements within the
Property, which will be maintained by it or the service provider as provided in any utility
agreement between Owner and the service provider.

D. Sewage Treatment and Disposal. Sewage treatment and disposal will be
provided by BJWSA or some other legally constituted public or private provider allowed to operate
in the County. The County will not be responsible for any treatment, maintenance or costs
associated with sewage treatment within the Property, unless the County elects to provide such
service with the agreement of the applicable utility authority then providing such service to the
Property. Nothing herein shall be construed as precluding the County from providing sewer
services to its residents in accordance with applicable provisions of law. Owner will construct or

9 April 18,2022



cause to be constructed all related infrastructure improvements within the Property, which will be
maintained by it or the provider as provided in any utility agreement between Owner and the
service provider.

E. Use of Effluent. Owner agrees that treated effluent will be disposed of
only in such manner as may be approved by DHEC and the BJWSA. The County will use good
faith efforts to cooperate with the Owner to support Owner in its obtaining gray water in
connection with providing irrigation water for the landscaped areas within the Property, if such is
economically feasible. The Owner or its designee shall have the right to operate an irrigation
system to provide irrigation services in connection with all or any portion of the Property, provided
such is approved by DHEC or other applicable regulatory authority.

F. Police Services. County shall provide law enforcement protection services
to the Property on the same basis as is provided to other similarly situated businesses in the
County.

G. Fire Services. County shall provide fire protection services to the Property
on the same basis as is provided to other similarly businesses in the County. It is further
acknowledged the nature of the development of the Project will require additional equipment
(generically, “Heavy Rescue Equipment’). Provision of funds towards that acquisition by the
Developer are contained hereinbelow in Article XI. Owner acknowledges the jurisdiction of the
County's fire department on the Property and shall not interfere or in any way hinder public safety
activities on the Property regardless of whether such may be a restricted access community.

H. Sanitation Services. County shall provide sanitation services and trash
collection services to all properties within the Property on the same basis as provided to other

similarly situated businesses within the County.

L. Recreation Services. County shall provide recreation services to the
Property on the same basis as provided to other similarly situated businesses in the County.

J. Library Services. Such services are available on the same basis as
provided to all other citizens of the County.

10 April 18, 2022



K. Emergency Medical Services (EMS). Such services shall be provided to
the Property on the same basis as provided to all other citizens of the County.

L. Drainage System. All stormwater runoff, treatment and drainage system
improvements within the Property will be designed and operated in accordance with the Zoning
Regulations and Best Management Practices then current. All stormwater runoff, treatment and
drainage system improvements for the Property shal! be constructed by Owner or the Association.
The County will not be responsible for any construction or maintenance cost associated with the
stormwater runoff, treatment and drainage system within the Property.

M. Storm Water Quality. Protection of the quality in nearby waters and
wetlands is a primary goal of the County. The Owners shall be required to abide by all provisions
of federal and state laws and regulations, including those established by the Department of Health
and Environmental Control, the Office of Ocean and Coastal Resource Management, and their
successors for the handling of storm water. Further provisions regarding Storm Water are
included within the PDD for this Project and more fully set forth on Exhibit F.

N. Traffic Management /Mitigation.

1. Traffic mitigation measures include improvements to US Highway 17 and
John Smith Road as detailed in the traffic impact study prepared by Bihl Engineering dated April,
2021, as updated on January 2022 and March 4, 2022,

2, Truck traffic shall be physically prohibited from making left-turns out of the
Property onto US Highway 17, through the use of height barriers, and/or narrow lanes, or such
other additional restrictive devices as may be approved by the Jasper County Administrator,
whose approval shall not be unreasonably withheld. It is acknowledged it is the intention of Jasper
County to support the limitation on eighteen wheeler truck traffic on John Smith Road.

3. After approximately 500,000 square feet of building space has been
constructed and is in operation, Owner shall pay for a traffic warrant examining the need for
additional traffic improvements as a result of this Project, such as additional traffic lighting or
stacking lane improvements on Highway 278 from its intersection with Highway 17 to John Smith
Road, including signalization improvements onto 1-95 and on Highway 17 and 278. In the event
additional improvements are needed to avoid an unacceptable degradation of the intersection
functioning, such traffic lighting and associated intersection improvements will be permitted and
constructed at Owner's expense. [f any such additional traffic improvements are warranted,

11 April 18, 2022



Owner shall engage, or cause to be engaged, appropriate professionals to design, permit and
construct the signalized intersection, said construction to be completed within eighteen (18)
months of approval and issuance of an encroachment permit by the SCDOT. If the initial traffic
warrant does not support the installation of additional traffic improvements, additional warrant
studies will be conducted on a recurring basis on the occurrence of the earlier of the construction
and placement into operation of each additional 500,000 square feet of building space or the
passage of two years from the date of the last warrant study.

4, In order to assist with, among other matters, the costs of these additional
traffic mitigation measures and improvements, it is acknowledged that the County has agreed to
enter into a Fee in Lieu of Tax Agreement contemporaneously herewith to provide a 15% Special
Source Revenue Credit (the “SSRC”) for the Project. The County will also consider the potential
inclusion of the qualifying traffic improvements as part of the capital improvement program funded
by future County impact fees. The County will provide up to fifty percent (50%) of the traffic
signalization and intersection improvements at John Smith Road on a matching dollar for dollar
basis with the Owner out of the Additional Development Fees.

Xi. DEVELOPMENT FEES.
1. To assist the County in meeting expenses resulting from ongoing development,
Owner shall pay development fees for, Fire/Public Safety and Roads (“Development Fees") as
follows, as set forth below:

DEVELOPMENT FEES AMOUNT

Non-Residential per 1,000 sf $660 Roads and Traffic Mitigation Facilities

$500 Fire/Public Safety

2. All Development Fees shall be collected at the time of obtaining a building
permit. Roads and Traffic Mitigation Facilities Development Fees shall be placed in a separate
interest bearing account and all such monies shall be utilized, unless otherwise agreed by the
County and Owner, to reimburse Owner for the construction of external roadways and near-site
traffic mitigation measures, including landscaping and lighting (which shall be paid by County to
Owner within thirty (30) days after substantial completion of each road/traffic mitigation segment

12 April 18, 2022



out of the first funds in the Road and Traffic Fund, as collected and available). The Fire/Public
Safety Fee is to be used for capital expenditures to provide Heavy Rescue capabilities made
necessary by the industrial/commercial nature of the Project, as well as other usual capital
expenditures associated with the demands for enhanced services.

3. In addition to the Development Fees, Owner agrees to make an Annual
Development Fee equal to the assessed taxable value of the Property multiplied by 112 mills (the
“Annual Fee”), payable beginning in the tax year 2022 and payable by January 15" of the
following year and each year thereafter. The Annual Fee is payable for the term of this Agreement
including any renewal hereunder. The parties acknowledge the County will provide the SSRC for
the same term as the term such Annual Fee is due. The Annual Development Fee is being
provided in consideration, among other things, of the granting of the Multi-County Business Park
status, the SSRC, and the FILOT Agreements; the limitation of other development fees by the
County, the exemption from the application of future laws as provided herein; and to assure other
public benefits pursuant to §§ 6-31-10(4), and 6-31-60(D) of the South Carolina Code of Laws,
1976 (as amended).

4. Notwithstanding any provisions to the contrary contained within this Agreement,
it is acknowledged Jasper County is in the process of considering the adoption of Impact Fees as
allowed by §6-1-910, et. seq. of the South Carolina Code of Laws (1976, as amended). In the
event Impact Fees are adopted by the County, the Property shall be subject to such fees provided
they are applied uniformly to similar properties as this Property, and provided further, that any
Developer Fees paid by the Developer under Article XI (1) and (2) shall be credited against the
Impact Fees to the extent the Development fees are for items included in the capital program
incorporated in the formulation of the Impact Fees. It is further provided Owner and/or Developers
shall be subject to the payment of any and all present or future permitting fees enacted by the
County that are of County wide application and that relate to processing applications,
development permits, building permits, review of plans, or inspection (no other capital
improvement related impact, development or other extractions).

6. Except as set forth in this Agreement, nothing herein shall be construed as
relieving the Owner, its successors and assigns, from payment of any such fees or charges as
may be assessed by entities other than the County, provided however, if an entity other than the
County is permitted by County to impose fees or obligations similar in nature to those

13 April 18, 2022



contemplated by this Agreement, the Owner shall be entitled to either an offset against the
Development Fees of this Agreement the amount of such fees or obligations which are collected
or a credit against the other fees allowed to be collected. It is the intent of the parties that the fees
and obligations contemplated by this Agreement are the only obligations which will be imposed
upon the Property and that County shall not permit any other governmental authority to impose
fees or obligations of a similar nature to that which are contemplated by this Agreement without
providing for a credit against the other fees for the fees due under this Agreement; provided,
however, the provisions of this paragraph shall not preclude the County or another governmental
authority from imposing a fee of a nature which is for services or improvements other than those
contemplated under this Agreement - (i.e., roads, fire/public safety), which are imposed on a
consistent basis throughout the area regulated by such governmental authority imposing such
obligations. The County or other governing body shall not be precluded by this Agreement from
charging fees for delivery of services to citizens or residents (i.e., an EMS response fee or the
like), nor from charging fees statutorily authorized in the future (i.e, a real estate transfer fee or the
like) which are not collected as a prerequisite to approval of a plat, plan or construction.

6. The fees set forth above in Article XI (1) through (3) are vested for the entire
Property during the Term of this Agreement and shall not be increased. No other Development
Fee or development obligation shall be imposed in connection with the property, except as may
be allowed pursuant to Article X (4) and (5) and fees set out in generally applicable ordinances
such as building permitting fees and inspection fees. The Fire/Public Safety and Road/Traffic
Mitigation Development Fees are subject to an annual inflation factor equal to inflation factor as
provided by the State of South Carolina to each local government for the calculation of tax millage
increases.

7. Any Development Fees paid and/or credits for Development Fees with respect
to property conveyed, services performed and/or money paid as provided in this Agreement may
be assigned by the Owner and/or Developer owning such credits and all such credits shall remain
valid until utilized. The Owner and/or Developer shall provide written notice of intent to transfer
such credits to the County and shall obtain an acknowledgement from the County prior to any
such transfer. The County shall recognize all such written assignments of such rights and shall
credit same against any Development Fees which are owned pursuant to this Agreement.

Xl. PERMITTING PROCEDURES:

14 April 18, 2022



1. The County agrees that the Owner and/or any Developer is not required to
phase development but shall have the right to do so.

2. The County agrees to review all land use changes, land development
applications, and plats in an expeditious manner in accordance with County Regulations as
modified by the PDD for this Project. Plans will be processed in accordance with the then current
County PDD Plan, subdivision plat and development plan procedural requirements and fee
schedules. Developer may submit these items for concurrent review with the County and other
governmental authorities. County may give final approval to any submission, but will not grant
authorization to record plats or begin development construction activities until all permitting
agencies have completed their reviews.

3. Signage for the Project is governed by the provisions of the PDD for this
Project.

4, The County acknowledges that the Owner and/or Developer has the initial
right of architectural review regarding improvements and building upon the Property, subject to
normal review by the County Planning Commission. It is the intent of this Agreement and its PUD
to avoid long unarticulated facades visible from the adjacent Highway 17 and residential area.

5. The County agrees that the Property is approved and fully vested for
intensity, density, development fees, uses and height, and shall not have any obligations for on or
off site transportation or other facilities or improvements other than as provided in this Agreement,
but must adhere to then current PDD Plan, Master Plan, and subdivision plat and development
plan procedural guidelines. The County may not impose additional development obligations or
regulations in connection with the ownership or development of the Property, except in
accordance with the procedures and provisions of § 6-31-80 (B) of the Act, which the Owner shall
have the right to challenge.

6. Private Roadways may utilize swale drainage systems and are not required
to have raised curb and gutter systems, except where necessary to accommodate pedestrian or
multi-use sidewalks or pathways. Public Road Improvements are subject to the drainage
requirements of the public agency having jurisdiction and/or ownership. In order to incorporate
and provide an opportunity to extend such of the off-site road landscape, lighting and sidewalk,
bike and pedestrian improvements consistent with the Whyte Hardee Boulevard Traffic
Improvement program prepared by the City of Hardeeville, a cash contribution to the County
towards those improvements of $100,000.00 shall be made at the time site work begins on the

15 April |8, 2022



Project. Roadway cross sections utilizing swale drainage will be designed, constructed and
maintained to meet BMP standards (imposed by regulatory agencies) for stormwater quality.
Roadway cross sections will be reviewed at time of proposed construction of such Roadway
based upon engineering and planning standards consistent with the PDD Plan prepared by
Developer subject to the approval of the County Planning Administrator.

7. All plan review fees shall be consistent with the fees charged generally in
the County and in effect at that time.

Xll. DEVELOPER ENTITLEMENTS
County acknowledges that Developer is vested with the following items:

1. The County will, to the extent available, promote public transportation which
exists within the County to service the Property.

2. Intentionaily Deleted.

3. All drainage systems constructed within the Project shall be owned and
maintained by one (1) or more Association(s) which may be established for various portions of the
Property and the County shall have no responsibility for the construction, operation or
maintenance of such systems. Such systems shall be constructed in compliance with any
applicable federal, state, or local requirement utilizing then current Best Management Practices.

4, On-site burning may be permitted within the Property upon obtaining
applicable permits

5. The County agrees to cooperate with the Owner and each Developer with
county, state and federal roadway permitting in connection with the Development of portions of
the Property.

6. County services, including, but not limited to, police, fire, sanitation,
recreational parks and other governmental services shall be supplied to the Property in the same
manner and to the same extent as provided to other similar business properties within the County,
subject to the limitations (if any) of Section X above. Subject to the limitations of Section X above
(if any), should the Owner require enhanced services beyond that which is routinely provided

16 April 18, 2022



within the County, then the County agrees that upon the written request of Owner, it shall
negotiate in good faith with the Owner to provide such enhanced services to the Property. Any
enhanced services shall be at the sole cost of the Owner and/or Developer.

Xill. COMPLIANCE REVIEWS.

As long as Owner owns any of the Property, Owner or its designee, shall meet with
the County, or its designee, at least once, per year, during the Term to review Development
completed by Owner in the prior year and the Development anticipated to be commenced or
completed by Owner in the ensuing year. The Owner, or its designee, shall provide such
information as may reasonably be requested, to include but not be limited to, acreage of the
Property sold in the prior year, acreage of the Property under contract, and the number
anticipated to be issued in the ensuing year, Development Rights transferred in the prior year, and
anticipated to be transferred in the ensuing year. The Owner, or its designee, shall be required to
compile this information within a reasonable time after written request by the County.

XIV. DEFAULTS.

The failure of the Owner, Developer or the County to comply with the terms of this
Agreement not cured within thirty (30) days after written notice from the non-defaulting party to the
defaulting party (as such time period may be extended with regard to non-monetary breaches for
a reasonable period of time based on the circumstances, provided such defaulting party
commences to cure such breach within such period and is proceeding diligently and expeditiously
to complete such cure) shall constitute a default, entitling the non-defaulting party to pursue such
remedies that are deemed appropriate, including specific performance; provided however no
termination of this Agreement may be declared by the County absent its according the Owner and
any relevant Developer the notice, hearing and opportunity to cure in accordance with the Act;
and provided any such termination shall be limited to the portion of the Property in default, and
provided further that nothing herein shall be deemed or construed to preclude the County or its
designee from issuing stop work orders or voiding permits issued for Development when such
Development contravenes the provisions of the Zoning Regulations or this Agreement.

Each Party recognizes that the other Party may suffer irreparable harm from a
material breach of this Agreement and that no adequate remedy at law may exist to enforce this
Agreement. Consequently, the Parties agree that any non-breaching Party who seeks
enforcement of the Agreement is entitled to seek the equitable remedies of injunction and specific

17 April 18, 2022



performance. However, if there is a dispute between the County and Property Owner, or its
successor or assign, concerning the terms, meaning, interpretation, rights or obligations under
this Agreement (including any determination of material breach under the Act), the Parties agree
to submit such dispute to prompt mediation before invoking legal proceedings. This pre-litigation
mediation, conducted pursuant to South Carolina Rules for Alternative Dispute Resolution with
subsequent judicial action lying in the Court of Common Pleas for Jasper County, shall be initiated
by one Party notifying the other Party or Parties in writing of the dispute together with a request
for mediation as described herein. The Parties agree that disputes under this Agreement not
involving the Current Regulations are contractual matters, not appealable to the Zoning Board of
Appeals or the Planning Commission, but to the Court of Common Pleas for Jasper County;
however, matters involving the application of the Current Regulations are not contractual, but are
subject to the administrative review and appellate provisions involving the Zoning Board of
Appeals or the Planning Commission.

A default of the Owner shali not constitute a default by Developers, and default by
Developers shall not constitute a default by the Owner. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the failure
of the Owner to reasonably pursue the required permitting/approvals for and completion of
required traffic mitigation measures shall be grounds for the cessation of the issuance of
development permits for future sites; provided, however, that should the County Administrator
determine that there is a default by the Owner, he shall immediately notify the Owner in writing by
certified mail, return receipt requested, and allow the Owner fifteen (15) days to respond with an
explanation of why Owner is not in default or a plan for remedying the default. In the event the
Owner presents a plan of remediation for approval by the County Administrator, whose approval
shall not be unreasonably withheld, the parties shall agree to a commercially reasonable time to
complete the remediation plan, and during such time no negative action shall be taken against the
Owner or Developers. Failure to submit such a response or failure to subsequently pursue a plan
of remediation may result in a moratorium on future development permits, a stop work order, and
any other consequences reasonably determined by the County Administrator. The parties
acknowledge that owners of completed buildings within the Project shall not be obligated for the
obligations of the Owner or Developer set forth in this Agreement, unless the Property remains
under unified ownership or unless such owners of completed buildings have been assigned any
rights under this Agreement. In such case, the owners of completed buildings shall also be
obligated for obligations set forth in this Agreement.

XV. MODIFICATION OF AGREEMENT.

18 Apnl 18, 2022



This Agreement may be modified or amended only by the written agreement of the
County and the Owner; such written agreement may be by resolution. No statement, action or
agreement hereafter made shall be effective to change, amend, waive, modify, discharge,
terminate or effect an abandonment of this Agreement in whole or in part unless such statement,
action or agreement is in writing and signed by the party against whom such change, amendment,
waiver, modification, discharge, termination or abandonment is sought to be enforced.

This Agreement may be modified or amended as to a portion of the Property only by the
written agreement of the County and the Owner of said portion of the Property. No statement,
action or agreement hereafter made shall be effective to change, amend, waive, modify,
discharge, terminate, or effect an abandonment of this Agreement in whole or in part unless such
change, amendment, waiver, modification, discharge, termination or abandonment is sought to be
enforced.

If an amendment affects less than all the persons and entities comprising the Property
Owners, then only the County and those affected persons or entities need to sign such written
amendment. Because this Agreement constitutes the plan for certain planned development under
the zoning ordinance, minor modifications to a site plan or to development provisions may be
made without a public hearing or amendment to applicable ordinances. Any requirement of this
Agreement requiring consent or approval of one of the Parties shall not require amendment of this
Agreement unless the text expressly requires amendment, and such approval or consent shall be
in writing and signed by the affected parties. Wherever said consent or approval is required, the
same shall not be unreasonably withheld.

The master plans are not intended to be rigid, exact site plans for future development.
The location of roads, buildings, recreational amenities and other elements may vary at the time
of permit applications when more specific designs are available, as long as the maximum
densities set herein and the general concept of development suggested by the PDD and Master
Plan is followed and respected; however, reductions in required buffers and setbacks in relation to
external properties and roadways are a major modification. Such minor variations are eligible to
be approved at staff level in accordance with the Zoning Regulations.

XVI. NOTICES.
Any notice, demand, request, consent, approval or communication which a
signatory party is required to or may give to another signatory party hereunder shall be in writing

19 April 18,2022



and shall be delivered or addressed to the other at the address below set forth or to such other
address as such party may from time to time direct by written notice given in the manner herein
prescribed, and such notice or communication shall be deemed to have been given or made when
communicated by personal delivery or by independent courier service or by facsimile or if by mail
on the fifth (5th) business day after the deposit thereof in the United States Mail, postage prepaid,
registered or certified, addressed as hereinafter provided. All notices, demands, requests,
consents, approvals or communications shall be given at:

To the County: County Administrator
Jasper County
PO Box 1149
Ridgeland, SC 29936

With Copy to: County Attorney
Jasper County
PO Box 420
Ridgeland, SC 29936

And to the Owner at: SL Hardeeville Industrial Park LLC
195 Morristown Road
Basking Ridge, NJ 07920
ATTN: Jimmy Constankis, Vice President
Email: Jimmyc@silvermangroup.net

And: SL Hardeeville Industrial Park LLC
195 Morristown Road
Basking Ridge, NJ 07920
ATTN: Holden Sabato, Development Coordinator
Email: holdensabato@silvermangroup.net

With Copy to: Nexsen Pruet, LLC
205 King Street, Suite 400
Charleston, SC 29401
ATTN: Nicole A. Scott

XVIl. ENFORCEMENT.

Any party hereto shall have the right to enforce the terms, provisions and
conditions of this Agreement (if not cured within the applicable cure period) by any remedies
available at law or in equity, including specific performance, and the right to recover attorney’s
fees and costs associated with said enforcement.

XVIli. GENERAL.

20 Apnil 18, 2022



A. Subsequent Laws. In the event state or federal laws or regulations are
enacted after the execution of this Agreement or decisions are issued by a court of competent
jurisdiction which prevent or preclude compliance with the Act or one or more provisions of this
Agreement ("New Laws"), the provisions of this Agreement shall be modified or suspended as
may be necessary to comply with such New Laws. Immediately after enactment of any such New
Law, or court decision, a party designated by the Owners and Developer(s) and the County shall
meet and confer in good faith in order to agree upon such modification or suspension based on
the effect such New Law would have on the purposes and intent of this Agreement. During the
time that these parties are conferring on such modification or suspension or challenging the New
Laws, the County may take reasonable action to comply with such New Laws. Should these
parties be unable to agree to a modification or suspension, either may petition a court of
competent jurisdiction for an appropriate modification or suspension of this Agreement. In
addition, the Owner, Developers and the County each shall have the right to challenge the New
Law preventing compliance with the terms of this Agreement. In the event that such challenge is
successful, this Agreement shall remain unmodified and in full force and effect.

B. Estoppel Certificate. The County, the Owner or any Developer may, at
any time, and from time to time, deliver written notice to the other applicable party requesting such
party to certify in writing:

1. that this Agreement is in full force and effect,

2. that this Agreement has not been amended or modified, or if so amended,
identifying the amendments,

3. whether, to the knowledge of such party, the requesting party is in default or
claimed default in the performance of its obligations under this Agreement, and, if so, describing
the nature and amount, if any, of any such default or claimed default, and

4, whether, to the knowledge of such party, any event has occurred or failed to
occur which, with the passage of time or the giving of notice, or both, would constitute a default

and, if so, specifying each such event,

C. Entire Agreement. This Agreement sets forth, and incorporates by
reference all of the agreements. conditions and understandings among the County and the Owner

21 April 18, 2022



relative to the Property and its Development and there are no promises, agreements, conditions
or understandings, oral or written, expressed or implied, among these parties relative to the
matters addressed herein other than as set forth or as referred to herein.

D No Partnership or Joint Venture. Nothing in this Agreement shall be
deemed to create a partnership or joint venture between the County, the Owner or any Developer
or to render such party liable in any manner for the debts or obligations of another party.

E. Exhibits. All exhibits attached hereto and/or referred to in this Agreement
are incorporated herein as though set forth in full.

F. Construction. The parties agree that each party and its counsel have
reviewed and revised this Agreement and that any rule of construction to the effect that
ambiguities are to be resolved against the drafting party shall not apply in the interpretation of this
Agreement or any amendments or exhibits hereto. This Agreement should be construed so as to
effectuate the public purpose of settlement of disputes, while protecting the public health, safety
and welfare, including but not limited to ensuring the adequacy of public facilities and compatibility
between developed and undeveloped lands and their uses.

G. Assignment. Subject to the notification provisions hereof, Owner may
assign its rights and responsibilities hereunder to a subsidiary or sister company, or subsequent
land owners and Developers.

H. Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the
State of South Carolina.

L Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in several
counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, and such counterparts shall constitute
but one and the same instrument.

J. Agreement to Cooperate. In the event of any legal action instituted by a
third party or other governmental entity or official challenging the validity of any provision of this
Agreement, the parties hereby agree to cooperate in defending such action; provided, however,
each party shall retain the right to pursue its own independent legal defense.

22 April 18, 2022



K. Eminent Domain. Nothing contained in this Agreement shall limit, impair
or restrict the County's right and power of eminent domain under the laws of the State of South
Carolina.

L. No Third Party Beneficiaries. The provisions of this Agreement may be
enforced only by the County, the Owner and Developers. No other persons shall have any rights
hereunder.

M. Contingencies. This Agreement is contingent on Owner acquiring title to

the Property and the approval of the Board of Directors of Owner and the County Council of the
Jasper County, South Carolina. Notwithstanding the above, Owner agrees to remain responsible
for the payment of the processing fees incurred by the County in reviewing and approving the
Planned Development District application and Development Agreement as set forth in Section X
(xi) above.

N. Recording. Within fourteen (14) days after execution of this Agreement,
the Property Owner shall record the agreement with the Jasper County Register of Deeds. The
burdens of this Agreement are binding upon, and the benefits of this Agreement shall inure to, all
successors in interest and assigns of the Parties to this Agreement.

0. Agreement to Run with the Land. This Agreement shall be recorded
against the Real Property as described in Exhibit A and shown on Exhibits B attached hereto.
The agreements contained herein shall be deemed to run with the land. The burdens of this

Agreement are binding upon, and the benefits of the Agreement shall inure to, all successors in
interest to the Parties to the Agreement.

XIX. STATEMENT OF REQUIRED PROVISIONS
A. Specific Statements. The Act requires that a development agreement
must include certain mandatory provisions, pursuant to Section 6-31-60 (A). Although certain of
these items are addressed elsewhere in this Agreement, the following listing of the required

provisions is ser forth for convenient reference. The numbering below corresponds to the
numbering utilized under Section 6-31-60 (A) for the required items:

1. Legal Description of Property and Legal and Equitable Owners. The
legal description of the Property is set forth in Exhibit A attached hereto.
The present legal Owner of the Property is Eagle Associates of Niagara
Frontier, Inc., a New York Corporation. The equitable owner of the

23 April 18, 2022



Property is SL Hardeeville Industrial Park LLC, by virtue of its
Contract/Option to Purchase.

Duration of Agreement. The duration of this Agreement shall be as
provided in Article IlI.

Permitted Uses, Densities, Building Heights and Intensities. A
complete listing and description of permitted uses, population densities,
building intensities and heights, as well as other development - related
standards, are contained in Zoning Regulations, as supplemented by this
Agreement.

Required Public Facilities. The utility services available to the Property
are described generally above regarding water service, sewer service,
cable and other telecommunication services, gas service, electrical
services, telephone service and solid waste disposal. The mandatory
procedures of the Zoning Regulations will ensure availability of roads and
utilities to serve the residents on a timely basis.

Dedication of Land and Provisions to Protect Environmentally
Sensitive Areas. All requirements relating to land transfers for public
facilities are set forth in Article Xl above. The Zoning Regulations described
above, and incorporated herein, contain numerous provisions for the
protection of environmentally sensitive areas. All relevant State and
Federal laws will be fully complied with, in addition to the important
provisions set forth in this Agreement.

Local Development Permits. The Development standards for the
Property shall be as set forth in the Zoning Regulations. Specific permits
must be obtained prior to commencing Development, consistent with the
standards set forth in the Zoning Regulations. Building Permits must be
obtained under applicable law for any vertical construction, and appropriate
permits must be obtained from the State of South Carolina (OCRM) and
Army Corps of Engineers, when applicable, prior to any impact upon
freshwater wetlands. It is specifically understood that the failure of this

24 April 18, 2022



Agreement to address a particular permit, condition, term or restriction does
not relieve the Owner, its successors and assign, of the necessity of
complying with the law governing the permitting requirements, conditions,
terms or restrictions, unless otherwise provided hereunder.

Comprehensive Plan and Development Agreement. The Development
permitted and proposed under the Zoning Regulations and permitted under
this Agreement is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and with current
land use regulations of the County, which include a Planned Development
District for the Property.

Terms for Public Health, Safety and Welfare. The County Council finds
that all issues relating to public health, safety and welfare have been
adequately considered and appropriately dealt with under the terms of this
Agreement, the Zoning Regulations and existing laws.

Historical Structures. Any cultural, historical structure or sites will be
addressed through the applicable federal and state permitting process at

the time of development, as required by applicable State regulations. No
such structures or sites are known to exist.

[SEPARATE SIGNATURE PAGES TO FOLLOW]

25 April 18, 2022



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereby set their hands and seals, effective the date
first above written.

WITNESSES: SL HARDEEVILLE INDUSTRIAL PARK LLC
By:
its:
STATEOF SOUTH CAROLINA )
) ACKNOWLEDGMENT
COUNTY OF JASPER )
{ HEREBY CERTIFY, that on this day of , 2022, before me, the

undersigned Notary Public of the State and County aforesaid, personally appeared the duly

authorized official of , known to me (or satisfactorily proven) to be the
person whose name is subscribed to the within document, who acknowledged the due execution
of the foregoing document.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, | have hereunto set my hand and official seal the day
and year last above mentioned.

Notary Public for South Carolina
My Commission Expires:

26 April 18, 2022



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereby set their hands and seals, effective the date
first above written.

WITNESSES: COUNTY OF JASPER, SOUTH CAROLINA
By:
its:

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA. )
) ACKNOWLEDGMENT

COUNTY OF JASPER. )

| HEREBY CERTIFY, that on this day of , 2022. before me, the
undersigned Notary Public of the State and County aforesaid, personally appeared

, known to me (or satisfactorily proven) to be the person whose

name is subscribed to the within document, as the appropriate officials of Jasper County, South
Carolina, who acknowledged the due execution of the foregoing document.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, | have hereunto set my hand and official seal the day
and year last above mentioned.

Notary Public for South Carolina
My Commission Expires:

27 April 18, 2022



EXHIBIT A
TO DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT
PROPERTY DESCRIPTION

Being all those certain pieces, parcels, or tracts of land located in Jasper County, South Carolina,
containing

28 April 18,2022



EXHIBIT B
TO DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT
PLANNED DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

The Planned Development District approval for the 95 Logistics Center (the Property
hereunder), as approved by the County Council on , is hereby incorporated herein by
reference, to include all drawings, plans, narratives and documentation submitted therewith, as
fully as if attached hereto. The parties hereto may elect to physically attach said documents
hereto, or may rely upon the above stated incorporation by reference, at their discretion.

29 April 18, 2022



EXHIBIT C
TO DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT
ZONING REGULATIONS

1. The Jasper County Development Ordinance(s) being codified with Municode® and current

on Municode® through Supplement No. 3 as of June 21, 2021 as amended through the
date of this Agreement

2. The Planned District Development (PDD) dated and adopted by Jasper County
by Ordinance Number on .

3. This Development Agreement, which shall control in the event of any conflict with the
above referenced Ordinance or PDD that cannot be resolved pursuant to Article IV above.

30 Apnil 18, 2022



EXHIBIT D

TO DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT

DEVELOPMENT SCHEDULE

Development of the Property is expected to occur over the 10-year term of the Agreement,
with the sequence and timing of development activity to be dictated largely by market conditions.
The following estimate of expected activity is hereby included, to be updated by Owner as the
development evolves over the term:

Year(s) of Commencement / Completion

Type of Development 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026
Site Work | Any
i Remaining

As stated in the Development Agreement, Section VI, actual development may occur more

rapidly or less rapidly, based on market conditions and final product mix.

31

April 18,2022




EXHIBIT E

TO DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT
Copy of Ordinance Adopting Development Agreement

{Attached)

32 April 18, 2022



EXHIBIT F

TO DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT

1.Storm Water Analysis(Attached)

2. Jasper County shall also be provided with contemporaneous copies of all submissions to
federal and state permitting authorities regarding storm water permitting and Stormwater Pollution

Prevention Plans.

33 April 18, 2022



STATE OF SQUTH CAROLINA ) DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT
)
COUNTY OF JASPER ) 95 LOGISTICS CENTER

This Development Agreement ("Agreement”) is made and entered this day of
, 2022, by and between SL Hardeeville Industrial Park LLC ("Owner"), and the
governmental authority of Jasper County, South Carolina ("County"}

WHEREAS, the legislature of the State of South Carolina has enacted the "South Carolina
Local Government Development Agreement Act” (the "Act”) as set forth in Sections 6-31-10
through 6-31-160 of the South Carolina Code of Laws (1976), as amended; and,

WHEREAS, the Act recognizes that "The lack of certainty in the approva! of development
can result in a waste of economic and land resources, can discourage sound capital improvement
planning and financing, can cause the cost of housing and development to escalate, and can
discourage commitment to comprehensive planning." [Section 6-31-10 (B} 1)]; and,

WHEREAS, the Act also states: "Development agreements will encourage the vesting of
property rights by protecting such rights from the effect of subsequently enacted local legislation or
from the effects of changing policies and procedures of local government agencies which may
conflict with any term or provision of the Development Agreement or in any way hinder, resirict, or
prevent the development of the project. Development Agreements will provide a reasonable
certainty as to the lawful requirements that must be met in protecting vested property rights, while
mainlaining the authority and duty of government to enforce laws and regulations which promote
the public safety, health, and general welfare of the citizens of our State.” [Section 6-31-10 (B)(6)];
and,

WHEREAS, the Act further authorizes local governments, including County governments,
to enter Development Agreements with owners to accomplish these and other goals as set forth in
Section 6-31-10 of the Act, and,

WHEREAS, Owner will acquire approximaltely 226.94 acres, generally to be known as 95

Logistics Center, proposes to develop, or cause to be developed therein distribution center uses,
related warehousing and light industrial uses, including accessory and complimentary uses as

5T



described in the Planned Development Oistrict Zoning and Conceptual Master Plan adopted
herewith and attached as an Exhibit hereto; and.

WHEREAS, the County seeks to protect and preserve the natural environment and to
secure for its citizens quality, well planned and designed development and a stable and viable tax
base; and,

WHEREAS, the County finds that the program of development proposed by Owner for this
Property is consistent with the County 's comprehensive land use plan; and will further the health,
safety, welfare and economic well-being of the County and its residents; and.

WHEREAS, the program for development of the Property presents an unprecedented
opportunity for the County to secure quality planning and growth to protect the environment and
strengthen and revitalized the tax base; and,

WHEREAS, this Development Agreement is being made and entered between Owner and
the County. under the terms of the Act, for the purpose of providing assurances to Owner that it
may proceed with its development pian under the terms hereof, as hereinafter defined, consistent
with its approved Planned Development District (PDD) plan (as hereinafter defined) without
encountering future changes in law which would materially affect the ability to develop under the
pfan, and for the purpose of providing important protection to the natural environment and long term
financial stability and a viable tax base to the County, and for the purpose of providing cerain
funding and funding sources to assist the County in meeting the service and infrastructure needs
associated with the development authorized hereunder;

WHEREAS, The County conducted public hearings regarding its consideration of this
Agreement on February 22, 2022 and March 7, 2022, after publishing and announcing notice, in
accordance with the Act

WHEREAS, County Council adopted Ordinance Number 2022-10 on ., 2022,
(a) determining that this Agreement is consistent with the County Comprehensive Plan, the Act,
and the Cument Regulations of the County, and (b) approving this Agreement. A copy of the
Ordinance is attached hereto as Exhibit E, and incorporated herein by reference.

Sorch-tAge] 1, H22



NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the terms and conditions set forth herein, and other
good and valuable consideration, inctuding the potential economic benefits to both the County and
Owner by entering this Agreement, and to encourage well planned development by Owner, the
receipt and sufficiency of such consideration being hereby acknowledged, the County and Owner
hereby agree as follows:

I INCORPORATION.
The above recitals are hereby incorporated into this Agreement, together with the
South Carclina General Assembly findings as set forth under Section 6-31-10(B) of the Act.

. DEFINITIONS.
As used herein, the following terms mean:

“"Act” means the South Carolina Local Government Development Agreement Act, as
codified in Sections 6-31-10 through 6-31-160 of the Code of Laws of South Carolina (1976), as
amended; incorporated herein by reference.

“Adjacent Land" shall mean any real property adjacent to the 95 Logistics Center.

“Agreement” shall mean this Development Agreement as amended by the County and
Developer in writing from time to time.

“Asgsociation” shall mean one (1) or more properly owners’ associations established to
maintain porticns of the Property.

“BJWSA" shall mean the Beaufort/Jasper Water and Sewer Authority, its successors or
assigns

“County” shall mean Jasper County, South Carolina.

“Current Legal Owner” means Eagle Associates of Niagara Frontier, inc . a New Yaor

b Al L, 3023 |



“Developer” means Owner and all successors in title or lessees of the Cwner who
undertake Development of the Property who are transferred in writing from the Owner portions of
the Development Rights

"Development” means the development of portions of the Property and construction of
improvements thereon as contemplated in the Zoning Regulations.

“Development Fees” or “Developer Fees” shall have the meaning set forth in Paragraph
Xl

"Development Rights" means Development undertaken by the Owner or Developers in
accerdance with the Zoning Regulations and this Development Agreement.

"85 Logistics Center”, “PDD", “Project” or “Property” means that certain tract of land
described on Exhibit A, as may be amended with the Agreement of the County and Owner.

"Owner" means SL Hardeeville Industrial Park LLC, its corporate successors and any
assignee, whereby such interest is assigned in whole or in part in writing. Owner has a present

eguilable mierest in the Property by virfue of a contract to purchase with Current Legal Owner

“PDD Plan” shall mean the Conceptua! Master Plan attached to the Planned Development
District as same may be modified by agreement of the Owner and the County.

"Planned Development District" or “PDD Ordinance” means the PDD approved by the
Jasper County on , 2022, attached hereto as part of Exhibit B

"Term"” means the duration of this agreement as set forth in Section 1l hereof.

"Zoning Regulations" means the PDD establishing a Planned Development District for the
Property, and all the attachments thereto, including but not being limited to the PDD Plan, all
narratives, applications, and site development standards thereof {a copy of all of which is attached
hereto marked Exhibit C and incorporated herein by reference). all as same may be hereafter
amended by mutual agreement of the County and the Owner, this Development Agreement, and
the Jasper County Development Ordinance(s) being codified with Municode® and current on
Municode® through Supplement No. 3 as of June 21, 2021 as amended through the date of this



Agreement except: as the provisions thereof may be clarified or modified by the terms of the PDIP
and this Agreement.

. TERM.
The term of this Agreement shall commence on the date this Agreement is executed

by the County and Owner and terminate ten {10} years thereafter; provided however, that the terms
of this Agreement may be considered by the County, in its discretion, for an extension of the Term
in accordance with §6-31-60 of the Act absent a material breach of any terms of this agreement by
the Owner or any Developer during the initial term, or any subsequent extension.

v, DEVELOPMENT OF THE PROPERTY.
The Propenrty shall be developed in accordance with the Zoning Regulations and this
Agreement. All costs charged by or to the County for reviews required by the Jasper County Zoning
Ordinance shall be paid by the Owner or Developer or other party applying for such review as
generally charged throughout the County for plan review. The County shall, throughout the Tem
maintain or cause to be maintained, a procedure for the processing of reviews as contemplated by
the Zoning Regulaticns and this Agreement.

Whenever expressed or implied substantive provisions of this Agreement are inconsistent
with the applicable standards set forth in the Zoning Regulations as defined above, the standards
set forth in the Zoning Regulations and the standards set forth in this Agreement shall, to the extent
possible, be considered in pan maternalmatena to give effect to both the CurrentZoning Regulation}s
and this Agreement; provided, however, that nothing in this section is intended to revoke or repeal
the review, variance, special exception, or appeal authority of other bodies contained in Code of
Laws of South Carolina § 6-29-800 or in the CusraniZoning Regulations. |

V. CHANGES TO ZONING REGULATIONS.
The Zoning Regulations relating to the Property subject to this Agreement shall not

be amended or modified during the Term, without the express written consent of the Qwner, except
in accordance with the procedures and provisions of § 6-31-80 (B) of the Act, which Qwner shall
have the right to challenge. Owner does, for itself and its successors and assigns, including
Developers and notwithstanding the Zoning Regulations, agrees to be bound by the following:

1. The Owner shall be required to notify the County, in writing, as and when
Development Rights are transferred to any other party. Such information shall include the identity

ekt 2032 |



and address of the acquiring party, a proper contact person, the location and number of acres of
the Properly transferred, and the number of residential units and/or commercial acreage znd
associated square foolage, as applicable, subject to the transfer. Developers transferring
Development Rights to any other party shall be subject to this requirement of notification, and any
entity acquiring Development Rights hereunder shall be required to file with the County an
acknowledgment of this Agreement and a commitment to be bound by it.

2. The Owners and Developers, and their respective heirs, successors and
assigns agree that all Development, with the exception of imigation, incidental maintenance
facilities, earthwork and similar amenities which exist from time to time, and facilities existing at the
date of this Agreement will be served by potable water and sewer prior to occupancy, except as
otherwise provided herein for temporary use, temporary being defined as one year or less. Septic
tanks and/or wells may be allowed with the permission of BJWSA where there is a specific finding
that such use for specific portions of the Property will comply with the overall environmental
standards.

3. Building Codes and Laws Other Than Land Use Regulations. The Owner,
notwithstanding any provision which may be construed to the contrary in this Agreement. must
comply with any buikling, housing, electrical, mechanical, plumbing and gas codes subsequently
adopted by the County or other governmental entity, as authorized by Chapter 9 of Title 6 of the
South Carolina Code. This Agreement shall not be construed to supersede or contravene the
requirements of any building, housing, electrical, mechanical, plumbing and gas codes
subsequently adopted by the County or other governmental entity, as authorized by Chapter 9 of
Title 6 of the South Caroclina Code. The provisions of this Agreement are not intended, nor should
they be construed in any way, to alter or amend in any way the rights, duties and privileges of the
County to exercise governmental powers and pass laws not applicable to Development of the Real
Property including, but not limited to. the power of eminent domain and the power to levy and collect
taxes,; provided, however, that Laws applicable to the Development of the Property shall be subject
to Sections IX and XVIIl (a).

4 Additional buffers. In order to provide enhanced visual buffering from
Highway 17 and -95ad acent residential properties, the Project shall provide for the preservation
and enhancement of the existing trees and understory vegetation for a depth of 58100 feet from the
edge of the Highway 17 road rightsright of way-and_ Along the adjacent residential properties—but
#tha bulding siructuras-adiacert (0 the boundadesexsead 35 fealin hasghtthe buffer South, there

shall be increased-by-anothera 50 feetfoot buffer with sound wall fencing and landscaping to the




provide opacity blocking the view of thk
structures and outdoor storage areas from view from the adjacent seadways.residential properties

and a landscaping plan to achieve this screening requirement shall be submitted for approval b
the County Administrator_which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld. Buffers along |-95
shall be 35 feet.

-

Vl. DEVELOPMENT SCHEDULE.

The Property shall be developed in accordance with the development schedule,
attached as Exhibit D. or as may be amended by Owner or Developeris) in the future to reflect
actual market absorption. Pursuant to the Act, the failure of the Owner and any Developer to meet
the initial development schedule shali not, in and of itself, constitute a material breach of this
Agreement. In such event, the failure to meet the development schedule shall be judged by the
totality of circumstances, including but not limited to the Owners and Developer(s) good faith efforts
to attain compliance with the development schedule. These schedules are planning and forecasting
tools only, and shall not be interpreted as mandating the development pace initially forecast gr
preventing a faster pace if market conditions support a faster pace. The fact that actual
development may take place at a different pace, based on future market forces, is expected and
shall not be considered a default hereunder. Development activity may occur faster or slower than
the forecast schedule, as a matter of right, depending upon market conditions Furthermore,
periodic adjustments to the development schedule which may be submitted unilaterally by Qwner /
Developers in the future shall not be considered a material amendment or breach of the Agreement.

Vil. DENSITY.
Uses and density on the Property shall be the densities and uses as set forth in the
Planned Development District approval, Initial Master Plan, and as set forth below:

Up to a maximum of 2,600,000 square feet of distribution center, wareshouse, and other
related accessory and light industrial uses. The attached PDD depicts the initially planned lay out
and expected uses and the expected mix and general location of allowed uses, however, so long
as the total square footage of allowed uses does not exceed 2,600,000 square feet, the Owner shall
be allowed to alter location and product mix among all allowed uses under the PDD, based upon
ongoing project planning and markel conditions. Any such changes to exact location, building size,
or product mix shall not be considered a material amendment hereto, or an amendment to the
attached PDD or the subsequent Initial Master Plan, so long as the total allowed density is not
exceeded. Such minor changes will be approved at the staff review level.

Lagnl 13, 20227 |



Vil. RESTRICTED ACCESS
The Owner and/or each Developer shall have the right {but not the obligation) to
restrict access— within or into and out of the Propenly as long as such limited access does not
adversely affect in any material respect adjacent traffic patterns located on public rights-of-way.
Notwithstanding, there are required restrictions on truck traffic movements contained in Article Xl
(N) below.

IX. EFFECT OF FUTURE LAWS.

Cwner and Developers shall have vested rights to undertake Development of any or
all of the Property in accordance with the Zoning Regulations, as defined herein and modified
hereby, and as may be modified in the future with the approval of the Owner pursuant to the terms
hereof, and of this Agreement for the entirety of the Term. Future enactments of, or changes or
amendments to the County ordinances, including zening or development standards crdinances,
which conflict with the Zoning Regulations shall not apply to the Property unless the procedures
and provisions of §6-31-80 (B} of the Act are followed, which Owner shall have the right to
challenge. Motwithstanding the above, the Property will be subject to then current fire safety
standards and state and/or federal environmental quality standards of general application,

X. INFRASTRUCTURE AND SERVICES
The County and Owner recognize that the majonty of the direct costs associated
with the Development of the Property will be bome by the Owner and Developers, and many other
necessary services will be provided by other governmental or quasi-governmental entities, and not
by the County. For clarification, the parties make specific note of and acknowledge the following:

A. Private Roads. All reads within the Property shall be constructed by the
Owner, Developer or other parties and maintained by such party(ies) andior Association(s), or
dedicated for maintenance to other appropriate entities. The County will not be responsible for the
construction of any private roads within the Property, unless the County specifically agrees to do
so in the future.

B. Public Roads. All public roads outside the Property that serve the Property
are under the jurisdiction of the State of South Carolina regarding access, construction,
improvements and maintenance. Owner acknowledges that it must comply with all applicable state

| Fermatted: Font: Bokd
Formatted: Indent: First line: 0"



statues and rules and regulations of the South Carolina Department of Transportation or its
successor regarding access and use of such public roads. Developer shall be responsible for the
finaneing-andprovision of funds for the construction of improvements to Highway 17 and John Smith
Road in addition to property access improvements_all as required by SCOOT or Jasper County,

applicable, in conjunction with -County approved traffic mitigation plans. Upon Completion df
construction of any such improvements within the SCDOT right of way, and acceptance by SCDOT,
the SCBOT shall maintain all readway improvements within the public road right of way. Further
provisions regarding traffic management and mitigation are contained in Article X1 (N) hereinbelow.

C. Potahle Water. Potable water will be supplied to the Property by BJWSA or
some other legally constituted public or private provider allowed to operate in the County. The
County shall not be responsible for any construction, treatment, maintenance or costs associated
with water service to the Property unless the County elects to provide such services with the
agreement of the applicable utility autherity then providing such service to the Property. Owner will
construct or cause to be constructed all related infrastructure improvements within the Property,
which will be maintained by it or the service provider as provided in any utility agreement between
Owner and the service provider.

D. Sewage Treatment and Disposal. Sewage treatment and disposal will be
provided by BJWSA or some other legally constituted public or private provider allowed to operate
in the County. The County will not be responsible for any treatment, maintenance or costs
associated with sewage treatment within the Properly. uniess the County elects to provide such
service with the agreement of the applicable utility authority then providing such service to the
Property. Nothing herein shall be construed as precluding the County from providing sewer services
to its residents in accordance with applicable provisions of law. Owner will construct or cause to be
constructed all related infrastructure improvements within the Property, which will be maintained by
it or the provider as provided in any utility agreement between Owner and the service provider.

E. Use of Effiuent. Owner agrees that treated effluent will be disposed of anty
in such manner as may be approved by DHEC and the BJWSA. The County will use good faith
efforts to cooperate with the Owner to support Owner in its obtaining gray water in conneclion with
providing irrigation water for the landscaped areas within the Property, if such is economically
feasible. The Owner or its designee shall have the right to operate an irrigation system fo provide
irrigation services in connection with all or any portion of the Property, provided such is approved
by DHEC or other applicable regulatory authority.

St Al 1F. 20220 |



F. Police Services. County shall provide law enforcement protection services
to the Property on the same basis as is provided to other similarly situated businesses in the County,

G. Fire Services. County shall provide fire protection services to the Property
on the same basis as is provided to other simifarly businesses in the County. It is further
acknowledged the nature of the development of the Project will require additional equipment
(generically, “Heavy Rescue Equipment’). Provision of funds towards that acquisition by the
Developer are contained hereinbelow in Arlicle XI. Owner acknowledges the jurisdiction of the
County’s fire department on the Property and shall not interfere or in arywayany way hinder public
safety activities on the Property regardless of whether such may be a restricted access community

H. Sanitation Services. County shall provide sanitation services and trash
collection services to all properties within the Property on the same basis as provided to other
similarly sitvated businesses within the County.

I Recreation Services. County shall provide recreation services to the
Property on the same basis as provided to other similarly situated businesses in the County.

J. Library Services. Such services are available on the same basis as
provided to ali other citizens of the County.

K. Emergency Medical Services (EMS). Such services shall be provided to
the Property on the same basis as provided to all other citizens of the County.

L. Drainage System. All stormwater runoff, treatment and drainage system
improvements within the Property will be designed and operated in accordance with the Zoning
Regulations and Best Management Practices then current.  All stormwater runoff, treatment and
drainage system improvements for the Property shall be constructed by Owner or the Association.
The County will not be responsible for any construction or maintenance cost associated with the
stormwater runoff, treatment and drainage system within the Property.

M. Storm Water Quality. Protection of the quality in nearby waters and
wellands is a primary goal of the County. The Owners shall be required to abide by all provisions
of federal and state laws and regulations, including those established by the Department of Health

B HT)]



and Envirenmental Control, the Office of Ocean and Coastal Resource Management, and their
successors for the handling of storm water. Further provisions regarding Storm Water are included
within the PDD for this Project- and more fully set forth on Exhibit F.

N. Traffic Management /Mitigation.

1. H-s-wndarstood-and-agraed-that-Enal-traffis Traffic mitigation measures &
net-ye!—ﬂnahaed—bu&-at-mwmum—wﬂ-mclude the-Highway—t—improvements (o US Highway 1F
and John Smith Road as detailed in the traffic impact study prepared by Bihl Engineering date{i
April, 2021, as updated on January 2022 and March 4, 2022,

T

2. HHe-a-requirement-of-this-Agreement-thattrusk Truck traffic shall be physicall
prohibited from making left-turns out of the Property onto US Highway 17, through the use of height
barriers, and/or narrow lanes, or such other additional restrictive devices as may be approved
the Jasper County Administrator_whose approval shall nof be unreasonably withheld i

acknowiedged it s the intention of Jasper County to suppord the imtation on eightesn wheesler fruck
traffic on John Smith Road.

3 After approximately 500,000 square feet of building space has been
constructed and is in operation, Owner shall pay for a traffic warrant examining the need for
additional traffic improvements_as a result of this Project, such as additional traffic lighting
stacking lane improvements on Highway 278 from its intersection with Highway 17 to John Smith

Road, including signalization improvements onto 1-95 and on Highway 17 and 278. In the eve
additional improvements are needed to avoid aan unacceplable degradation of the intersectio
functioning-te-aa—-F +absa, such traffic ighiing and associated intersection improvements will

mstaied-asiathe-precess-ol baing-permitted and constructed at Owner's expense-saasto- I an
such additional budding-space-baing-cetfied fer-oasupanayiraffic iImprovements are warrantes

Owner shall engage, or cause to be engaged, apgropriate professionals to design, permil an

construct (he signalized infersedion, said construction to be completed within eighteen (18) month

of approval and tssuance of an encroachment perrmit by the SCDOT. If the inittal traffic warravit
does not support the installation of additional traffic improvements, additional warrant studies will
be conducted on a recurring basis on the occurrence of the earlier of the construction and placement
into operation of each additional 500,000 square feet of building space or the passage of two years
from the date of the last warrant study.

4, In order to assist with, among other matiers. the costs of these additiond|
traffic mitigation measures —+Athe ayant tha Davaloprrant Toas ac dotadad bolow ndohclo 20 L4

Sbaseis il L3, 2003 ] |



Ang b e S 2 e St Hot et S L gt b ksbos s improvements,
i is acknowledged thal the County

nagotiste-—n-goadaith-with-Owaerahas agreed 1o enter into a Fee in Lieu of Tax Agreemen
contemporaneousiy herewith to provide a_15% Special Source Revenue Credit through—a-idui-
B e L e e e M T N e P T T L R U 055 o the-tola-osavailable.
iR —awadabee- S - bodn the  unlundeo by Deve-oper—Rass—for troffic maonagamentioibgotion
Avedsues, and krg anc Soplc Safely- sapdal-aspendderascadsad by tra-Reca—lor aahar e
seruces-{lhe "SSRC") for the Project. The County will also consider the creatiensi-a-cpacialiax
degtest0r G- Counly - improvempment-Bisirsl—andthe—potential inclusion of_the qualifying traffic
improvements as part of the capital improvement program funded by future County impact fees.

The County will provide up to fifly percent (50%) of the traffic signalzation and infersection

improvements at John Smith Road on a matching dollar for dollar basis with the Owner out of the

Additional Development Fees.

Xi. DEVELOPMENT FEES.
1. To assist the County in meeting expenses resulting from ongoing development,
Owner shall pay development fees forAdmenislralive, Fire/Public Safety- and Roads asd
Community Feciibes ("Development Fees”) as follows, as set forth-iethe Table below:

DEVELOPMENT FEES AMOUNT

Non-Residential per 1,000 sf $660 Roads and Traffic Mitigation Facilities

$500 Fire/Public Safety

2. All Development Fees shall be collected at the time of obtaining a building permit.
Roads and Traffic Mitigation Facilities Development Fees shall be placed in a separate inlerest
bearing account and all such monies shall be utilized, unless otherwise agreed by the County and
Owner, to reimburse Owner for the construction of external roadways and near-site traffic mitigation
measures, including landscaping and lighting (which shall be paid by County to Owner within thirty
(30) days after substantial completion of each roadftraffic mitigation segment out of the first funds
in the Road and Traffic Fund, as collected and available). The Fire/Public Safety Fee is o be usad

for_capilal _expenddures to provide Heavy Rescue capabilities made necessary by the

Mt i 18, 3022 7



industrial/commercial nature of the Project, as well as other usual capital expenditures associatedl
with the demands for enhanced services

3 Arnuakn addition to the Development Fee-Gredi—Rroperdy

{#——Fees, Owner agrees to make an Annual Development FeesFee equal to t

assessed taxable value of the Property
{202+-millage-equale-34b-mills)-plusmultiplied by 112 mills-subeet-ta-a-Gra
equatte- (the astualamewnntAnnual Fee”) payable beginning in the fax ye
2022 and payable by January 157 of the sd-vakrerm-iases-arFaatnLiou
b e frobbe b B0 e Sy oF aiy Daroel haieol 36 apphkialig

Fhesefollowing vear and each year thereafter The Annual Bavelopmed:
Foas-arafee is payable for athe term savat-to-tha-longerof-tha-—Tarm-of th

Agreement exincluding any renewal hereunder, The parties acknowledqe th

County will provide the scheadwedSSRC for the same term ofas the o
E bt R
term_such Annual Fee is due The Annua!l Development Fee is being provided ip-

]
consideration, among other things, of the granting of the Multi-County Business Park status_th
SSRC, and the FILOT Agreements:, the limitation of other development fees by the County, th
exemption from the application of future laws as provided herein,, and to assure other publi
benefits pursuant to §§ 6-31-10(4), and 6-31-60(D} of the Scouth Carolina Code of Laws, 1976 {(as
amended).

i Hag FiradBabibic Balely Fea s 10 be osad 100 Sapelsl ospendiburas 1o

Hadwy Fasoua Gepamkhas mace nesessary by ke inpusteakcom
nature af tae Frosedl, 85 wak a5 olber vsuad capital erperd-lurps
with-lhe-demands for anhanced sansces

4. Notwithstanding any provisions to the contrary contained within this Agreement,
it is acknowledged Jasper County is in the process of considering the adoption of Impact Fees as
allowed by §6-1-910, et. seq. of the South Carolina Code of Laws {1976, as amended). In the event
Impact Fees are adopted by the County, the Property shall be subject to such fees provided they
are applied uniformly to similar properties as this Property, and provided further, that any Developer
Fees paid by the Developer under Article XI (1) and (2} shall be credited against the Impact Fees
to the extent the Development fees are for items included in the capital program incorporated in the

e T L ?1‘.!:"3 I

| Formatted: Superscript

| Formatted: No butets or rumbering



formulation of the Impact Fees. It is further provided Owner and/or Developers shall be subject to
the payment of any and all present or future permitting fees enacted by the County that are of
County wide application and that relate to processing applications, development permits, building
permits, review of plans, or inspection (no other capital improvement refated impact, development
or other extractions).

5. Except as set forih in this Agreement, nothing herein shall be construed as
relieving the Owner, its successors and assigns, from payment of any such fees or charges as may
be assessed by entities other than the County, provided however, if an entity other than the County
is permitted by County to mpesefessimpose fees or obligations simitar in nature to those
contemplated by this Agreement, the Owner shall be enfitled to & either an offset against the
Development Fees of this Agreement the amount of such fees or obligations which are collected or
a credit against the other fees allowed to be collected. It is the intent of the parties that the fees
and obligations contemplated by this Agreement are the only obligations which will be imposed
upon the Property and that County shali not permit any other governmental authority to impose fees
or obligations of a similar nature to that which are contemplated by this Agreement without providing
for a credit against the other fees for the fees due under this Agreement; provided, however, the
provisions of this paragraph shall not preclude the County or another governmental authority from
imposing a fee of a nature which is for services or improvements other than those contemplated
under this Agreement - (i.e., roads, fire/public safety), which are imposed on a consistent basis
throughout the area regulated by such governmental authority imposing such obligations. The
County or other governing body shall not be precluded by this Agreement from charging fees for
delivery of services to citizens or residents (i.e., an EMS response fee or the like}, nor from charging
fees statutorily authorized in the future (i.e, a real estate transfer fee or the like) which are not
collected as a prerequisite to approval of a plat, plan or construction.

6. The Bevelopment Fasefees set forth above in Article X1 (1) ard-(21hrough (3) are
vested for the entire Property during the Term of this Agreement and shall not be increased-and-ns.
Mo other Development Fee or development obligation shall be imposed in connection with the
property, except az may be allowed pursuant to Aricle X {4) and {5} and fees sel oul in generally

applicable ordinances such feesas building pemmitting fees and inspection fees, The Fire/Public

Safety and Road/Traffic Mitigation Development Fees are subject to an annual inflation factor equal

to inflation factor as provided by the Stale of South Carolina to each local government for the
calculation of tax millage increases.

a5 Al 11, 0221 4



7. Any Development Fees paid andfor credits for Development Fees with respect
to property conveyed, services performed and/or money paid as provided in this Agreement may
be assigned by the Owner and/or Developer owning such credits and all such credits shall remain
valid until utilized. The Owner and/or Developer shall provide written notice of intent to transfer
such credits to the County and shall obtain an acknowledgement from the County prior to any such
transfer. The County shall recognize all such written assignments of such rights and shall credit
same against any Development Fees which are owned pursuant to this Agreement.

Xl. PERMITTING PROCEDURES:
1. The County agrees that the Owner and/or any Developer is not required to
phase development but shall have the right to do so.

2, The County agrees to review all land use changes, land development
applicaticns, and plats in an expeditious manner in accordance with County Regulations as
madified by the PDD for this Project. Plans will be processed in accordance with the then current
County PDD Pian, subdivision plat and development plan procedural requirements and fee
schedules. Developer may submit these items for concurrent review with the County and other
governmental authorities. County may give final approval to any submission, but will not grant
authorization to record plats or begin development construction activities until all permitting
agencies have completed their reviews.

3. Signage for the Project is governed by the provisions of the PDD for this
Project.

4. The County acknowledges that the Owner and/or Developer has the initial
right of architectural review regarding improvements and building upon the Property, subject to
normal review by the County Planning Commission. It is the intent of this Agreement and its PUD
to avoid long unarticulated facades visible from the adjacent Highway 17 and residential area—

5. The County agrees that the Properly is approved and fully vested for
intensity, density, development fees, uses and height, and shall not have any obligations for on or
off site transportation or other facilities or improvements other than as provided in this Agreement,
but must adhere to then current PDD Plan, Master Plan, and subdivision plat and development plan
procedural guidelines. The County may not impose additional development obligations or
regulations in connection with the ownership or development of the Property, except in accordance

Moreht 0] |, H22] 5



with the procedures and provisions of § 6-31-80 (B) of the Act, which the Owner shall have the right
to challenge.

6. Private Roadways- may utilize swale drainage systems and are not required
to have raised curb and gutter systems, except where necessary to accommodate pedestrian or
multi-use sidewalks or pathways. Public Road Improvements are subject to the drainage
requirements of the public agency having jurisdiction and/or ownership. l-sagresd-thatln order lo
incorporate and provide an opportunity to extend such of the off-site road landscape, lighting and
sidewalk, bike and pedestrian improvements ehall-be-installedin-ascerdanceconsistent with the
Whyte Hardee Boulevard Traffic improvement program prepared by the City of Hardeeville, to-the
extent-possible—n-the-opiren-ofa cash_contribution to the County Ademimstaater—{owards those
improvements of $100.000 00 shall be made af the time site work beqins on the Project Roadway
cross seclions utilizing swale drainage will be designed, constructed and maintained to meet BMP

standards {imposed by regulatory agencies) for stormwater quality. Roadway cross sections will
be reviewed at time of proposed construction of such Roadway based upon engineering and
planning standards consistent with the POD Plan prepared by Developer subject to the approval of
the County Planning Administrator.

7. All plan review fees shall be consistent with the fees charged generally in the
County and in effect at that time.

Xll. DEVELOPER ENTITLEMENTS
County acknowledges that Developer is vested with the following items:

1. The County will, to the extent available, promote public transportation which
exists within the County to service the Property.

2, Intentionally Deleted.

3. All drainage systems constructed within the Project shall be owned and
maintained by one (1) or more Association(s) which may be established for various portions of the
Property and the County shall have no responsibility for the construction, operation or maintenance
of such systems. Such systems shall be constructed in compliance with any applicable federal,
state, or local requirement utilizing then current Best Management Practices.

b ol U, H2Z



4, On-site burning may be permitted within the Property upon obtaining
applicable permits

5. The County agrees to cooperate with the Owner and each Developer with
county, state and federal roadway permitting in connection with the Development of portions of the
Property.

6. County services, including, but not limited to, police, fire, sanitation,
recreational parks and other governmental services shall be supplied to the Propery in the same
manner and to the same extent as provided to other similar business properties within the Coun
subject to the limitations (if any) of Section X above. Subject to the limitations of Section X above
{if any), should the Owner require enhanced services beyond that which is routinely provided within
the County, then the County agrees that upon the written request of Owner, it shall negotiate in
good faith with the Owner to provide such enhanced services to the Property. Any enhanced
services shall be at the sole cost of the Owner and/or Developer.

Xil. COMPLIANCE REVIEWS.

As long as Owner owns any of the Property, Owner or its designee, shall meet with
the Counly, or its designee, at least once, per year, during the Term to review Development
completed by Owner in the prior year and the Development anticipated to be commenced or
completed by Owner in the ensuing year. The Owner, or its designee, shall provide such information
as may reasonably be requested, lo include but not be limited to, acreage of the Property sold in
the prior year, acreage of the Property under contract, and the number anticipated to be issued in
the ensuing year, Development Rights transferred in the prior year, and anticipated to be transferred
in the ensuing year. The Owner, or ifs designee, shall be required to compile this information within
a reasonable time after written request by the County.

XIV. DEFAULTS,
The failure of the Owner, Developer or the County to comply with the terms of this
Agreement not cured within thirty (30) days after written notice from the non-defaulting party to the
defaulting party (as such time period may be extended with regard to non-monelary breaches for a
reasonable period of time based on the circumstances, provided such defaulting party commences
to cure such breach within such period and is proceeding diligently and expeditiously to complete
such cure) shall constitute a default, entitling the non-defaulting party to pursue such remedies that

Mrcdrd ) 202247



are deemed appropriate, including specific performance; provided however no termination of this
Agreement may be declared by the County absent its according the Owner and any relevant
Developer the notice, hearing and opportunity to cure in accordance with the Act; and provided any
such termination shall be limited to the portion of the Property in default, and provided further that
nothing herein shall be deemed or construed to preclude the County or its designee from issuing
stop work orders or voiding permits issued for Development when such Development contravenes
the provisions of the Zoning Regulations or this Agreement.

Each Party recognizes that the other Party may suffer irreparable harm from a
material breach of this Agreement and that no adequate remedy at law may exist to enforce this
Agreement. Consequently, the Parlies agree that any non-breaching Party who seeks enforcement
of the Agreement is entitled to seek the equitable remedies of injunction and specific performance.
However, if there is a dispute between the County and Property Owner, or its successor or assign,
concerning the terms, meaning, interpretation, rights or obligations under this Agreement (including
any determination of material breach under the Act), the Parties agree to submit such dispute to
prompt mediation before invoking legal proceedings. This pre-litigation mediation, conducted
pursuant to South Carolina Rules for Alternative Dispute Resolution with subsequent judicial action
lying in the Court of Common Pleas for Jasper County, shall be initialed by one Pary notifying the
other Party or Parties in writing of the dispute together with a request for mediation as described
herein. The Parties agree that disputes under this Agreement not involving the Current Regulations
are confractual matters, not appealable to the Zoning Board of Appeals or the Planning
Commission, but to the Court of Common Pleas for Jasper County; however, matters involving the
application of the Current Regulations are not contractual, but are subject to the administrative
review and appellate provisions involving the Zoning Board of Appeals or the Planning Commission.

A default of the Owner shall not constitute a defauit by Developers, and default by
Developers shall not constitute a default by the Owner. Motwithslapding - a defaull-by-the Cawner
igaigmg e aela=ahon of equred Hafic SUNGSN0N  PSIEURRE  OF- BUDOGING Al ctuet e
CORAINAGE, WA Eawal Glhe glidbeel shad-begradnds for e cecoat op o toa cpnancoe
develppmeni permies for Bbue sies onlilsuch-tme-asthadalaull- - sorrpated-asd adeaaata
wfrastrusturaprovided-Notwithstanding the foreqoing. the failure of the Owner o reasonabky pursue
the required permitting/approvals for and complelion of required trafic mitination measures shall

be grounds for the cessation of the issvance of develapment permits for [uture sites, providad,

however, that should the County Administrator determine that there 1s a default by the Owner, he

shall immediately notfy the Cwner in wiiting by carified mail,_return receipt requestad, and allow

Magried Al 5. 2022 | §



the Qwner fifteen (15) days to respond with an explanation of why Owner is not in default or a pla
for remedying the defauit In the event the Owner presents a plan of remediation for approval b
the County Administrator, whose approval shall not be unreasonably withheld, the parties shall
agree to a commercially reasonable time to complete the remediation plan, and during such timg
no negative action shall be taken against the Owner or Developers. Failure to submit such b
response or failure lo subsequently pursue a plan of remediation may resuit in a moratorium oh
fulure development permits, a stop work order, and any other consequences reasonabll

deterrmined by the County Administrator. The parties acknowledge thal owners of complete?
buildings within the Project shali not be obligated for the obligations of the Owner or Developer set
forth in this Agreement, unless the Property remains under unified ownership or unless such owners
of completed buildings have been assigned any rights under this Agreement. In such case, the
owners of completed buildings shall also be obligated for obligations set forth in this Agreement.

XV. MODIFICATION OF AGREEMENT.
This Agreement may be modified or amended only by the written agreement of the
County and the Owner; such written agreement may be by resolution. No statement, action or
agreement hereafter made shall be effective to change, amend, waive, modify, discharge, terminate
or effect an abandonment of this Agreement in whole or in part unless such statement, action or
agreement is in writing and signed by the parly against whom such change, amendment, waiver,
modification, discharge, termination or abandonment is sought to be enforced.

This Agreement may be modified or amended as to a portion of the Property only by the
written agreement of the Counly and the Owner of said portion of the Property. No statement
action or agreement hereafter made shall be effective to change, amend, waive, modify, discharge,
terminate, or effect an abandonment of this Agreement in whole or in part unless such change,
amendment, waiver, modification, discharge, termination or abandonment is sought to be enforced.

If an amendment affects less than ail the persons and entities comprising the Property
Owners, then only the County and those affected persons or eniities need to sign such written
amendment. Because this Agreement constitutes the plan for certain planned development under
the zoning ordinance, minor meodifications to a site plan or fo development provisions may be made
without a public hearing or amendment to applicable ordinances. Any requirement of this
Agreement requiring consent or approval of one of the Parties shall not require amendment of this
Agreement unless the text expressly requires amendment, and such approval or consent shall be

Al At (8 ,}[::2'9 '



in writing and signed by the affected parties. Wherever said consent or approval is required, the
same shall not be unreasonably withheld.

The master plans are not intended to be rigid, exact site plans for future development. The
location of roads, buildings, recreational amenities and other elements may vary at the time of
permit applications when more specific designs are available, as long as the maximum densities
set herein and the general concept of development suggested by the PDD and Master Plan is
followed and respected; however, reductions in required buffers and setbacks in relation to external
properties and roadways are a major modification. Such minor variations are eligible to be approved
at staff level in accordance with the Zoning Regulations.

XVI. NOTICES.

Any notice. demand, request, consent, approval or communication which a signatory
party is required to or may give to another signatory party hereunder shail be in writing and shall be
delivered or addressed to the other at the address below set forth or to such other address as such
party may from time to time direct by written notice given in the manner herein prescribed, and such
notice or communication shall be deemed to have been given or made when communicated by
personal delivery or by independent courier service ar by facsimile or if by mail on the fifth (5th)
business day after the deposit thereof in the United States Mail, postage prepaid, registered or
cerlified. addressed as hereinafter provided. All notices, demands. requests, consents, approvals
or communications to-the Lounty shall be addresead lo the Courlygiven at:

To the County: County Administrator
Jasper County
PO Box 1149
Ridgeland, SC 29936

With Copy to. County Atiorney
Jasper Couniy

PO Box 420Rdgeland420 -

Ridgeland, SC 29936

And to the Owner at: The-Bivesman-roupSL Hardeevitle Industrial Park LEC
195 Merristown Road
Basking Ridge, NJ 07920
ATTN: Jimmy Constankis, Vice President
Email: Jimmyc@silvermangroup.net

And: The Biverman GroupSLl Hardeeville Industrial Park LLC

Mhatebs ool 1E, MR

| Formatted: Left



195 Morristown Road

Basking Ridge, NJ 07920

ATTN: Holden Sabato, Development Coordinator
Email: holdensabato@silvermangroup.net

ApdwstkWith Copy to: Nexsen Pruet, LLC
205 King Street, Suite 400
Charleston, SC 29401
ATTN: Nicole A, Scott

XVIl. ENFORCEMENT.

Any party hereto shall have the right to enforce the terms, provisions and conditions
of this Agreement (if not cured within the applicable cure period) by any remedies available at law
or in equity, including specific performance, and the right to recover attorney's fees and costs
associaled with said enforcement,

XVIIl. GENERAL.

A. Subsequent Laws. In the event state or federal laws or regulations are
enacted after the execution of this Agreement or decisions are issued by a court of competent
jurisdiction which prevent or preclude compliance with the Act or one or more provisions of this
Agreement {"New Laws"), the provisions of this Agreement shall be modified or suspended as may
be necessary to comply with such New Laws. Immediately after enactment of any such New Law,
or court decision, a party designated by the Owners and Developer(s} and the County shall meet
and confer in good faith in order to agree upon such modification or suspension based on the effect
such New Law would have on the purposes and intent of this Agreement. During the time that these
parties are conferring on such modification or suspension or challenging the New Laws, the County
may take reasonable action to comply with such New Laws. Should these parties be unable to
agree to a modification or suspension, either may petition a court of competent jurisdiction for an
appropriate modification or suspension of this Agreement. In addition, the Owner, Developers and
the County each shall have the right to challenge the New Law preventing compliance with the
terms of this Agreement. In the event that such challenge is successful, this Agreement shall remain
unmodified and in full force and effect.

B. Estoppel Certificate. The County. the Owner or any Developer may, at any
time. and from time to time, deliver written notice to the other applicable party requesting such party
to certify in wriling:

1. that this Agreement is in full force and effect,

Mt hpaid (5, 20227 |

{ Formatted: Tab stops: 1.39", Left



2. that this Agreement has not been amended or modified, or if so amended,
identifying the amendments,

3. whether, to the knowledge of such party, the requesting party is in default or
claimed default in the performance of its obligations under this Agreement, and, if so, describing
the nature and amount, if any, of any such default or claimed default, and

4. whether, to the knowledge of such party, any event has occurred or failed to occur
which, with the passage of time or the giving of notice, or both, would constitute a default and, if so,
specifying each such event.

c. Entire _Agreement. This Agreement sets forth, and incorporates by
reference all of the agreements. conditions and understandings among the County and the Owner
relative to the Properly and its Development and there are no promises, agreements, conditions or
understandings, oral or written, expressed or implied, among these paries relative to the matters
addressed herein other than as set forth or as referred to herein.

D No Partnership or Joint Ventura. MNothing in this Agreement shall be
deemed to create a partnership or joint venture between the County, the Owner or any Developer
or to render such party liable in any manner for the debts or obligations of ancother party.

E. Exhibits. All exhibits attached hereto andfor referred to in this Agreement
are incorporated herein as though set forth in full.

F. Construction. The parties agree that each party and its counsel have
reviewed and revised this Agreement and that any rule of construction to the effect that ambiguities
are to be resolved against the drafting party shall not apply in the interpretation of this Agreement
or any amendments or exhibits hereto. This Agreement should be construed so as to effectuate the
public purpose of settlement of disputes, while protecting the public health, safety and welfare,
including but not limited to ensuring the adequacy of public facilities and compatibility between
developed and undeveloped lands and their uses.

Mhorch-5. ] 15, ETTD



G. Assignment. Subject to the nofification provisions hereof, Owner may
assign its rights and responsibilities hereunder to a subsidiary or sister company, or subsequent
land owners and Developers.

H. Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State
of South Carolina.

I Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in several
counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, and such countemparts shall constitute but
one and the same instrument.

J. Agreement to Cooperate. In the event of any legal action instituted by a
third party or other governmental entity or official chalienging the validity of any provision of this
Agreement, the parties hereby agree to cooperate in defending such action; provided, howaver,
each party shall retain the right to pursue its own independent legal defense.

K. Eminent Domain. Nothing contained in this Agreement shall imit, impair or
restrict the County’s right and power of eminent domain under the laws of the State of South
Carolina.

L No Third Party Beneficiaries. The provisions of this Agreement may be
enforced only by the County, the Owner and Developers. No other persons shall have any rights
hereunder.

M. Contingencies. This Agreement is conlingent on Owner acquiring litle to
the Property and the approval of the Board of Directors of Owner and the County Council of the
Jasper County, South Carolina. Notwithstanding the above, Owner agrees to remain responsible
for the payment of the processing fees incurred by the County in reviewing and approving the
Planned Development District application and Development Agreement as set forth in Section X
(xi) above.

N. Recording. Within fourteen (14) days after execution of this Agreement, the
Property Owner shall record the agreement with the Jasper County Register of Deeds. The burdens
of this Agreement are binding upon, and the benefits of this Agreement shall inure to, all successors
in interest and assigns of the Parties to this Agreement.

02233 |



0. Agreement to Run with the Land. This Agreement shall be recorded
against the Real Property as described in Exhibit A and shown on Exhibits 8 attached hereto. The
agreements contained herein shall be deemed to run with the land. The burdens of this Agreement
are binding upon, and the benefits of the Agreement shall inure to, all successors in interest to the
Parties to the Agreement.

XIX. STATEMENT OF REQUIRED PROVISIONS
A. Specific Statements. The Act requires that a development agreement must
include certain mandatory provisions, pursuant to Section 6-31-60 (A). Although certain of these
items are addressed elsewhere in this Agreement, the following listing of the required provisions is
ser forth for convenient reference. The numbering below corresponds to the numbering utilized
under Section 6-31-60 (A) for the required items:

1. Legal Description of Property and Legal and Equitable Owners. The
legal description of the Property is set forth in Exhibit A attached hereto.
The present legal Owner of the Property is Eagle Associates of Niagara
Frontier, :Cinc., a New York Corporation. The equitable owner of the
Property is SL Hardeeville Industrial Park LLC, by vitue of ils
Contract/Option to Purchase.

2, Duration of Agreement. The duration of this Agreement shall be as
provided in Article Il

3. Permitted Uses, Densities, Building Heights and Intensities. A complete
listing and description of pemitted uses, population densities, building
intensities and heights, as well as other development — related standards.
are contained in Zoning Regulations, as supplemented by this Agreement.

4, Required Public Facilities. The utility services available 1o the Property are
described generally above regarding water service, sewer service, cable and
other telecommunication services, gas service, electrical services, telephone
service and solid waste disposal. The mandatory procedures of the Zoning
Regulations will ensure avaitability of roads and utilities to serve the residents
on a timely basis.

2‘I1'.".‘2.i_



Dedication of Land and Provisions to Protect Environmentally
Sensitive Areas. All requirements relating to land transfers for public
facitities are set forth in Article XI above. The Zoning Regulations described
above, and incorporated herein, contain numerous provisions for the
protection of environmentally sensitive areas. All relevant State and Federal
laws will be fully complied with, in addition to the important provisions set
forth in this Agreement.

Local Development Permits. The Development standards for the Property
shall be as set forth in the Zoning Regulations. Specific permits must be
obtained prior to commencing Development, consistent with the standards
set forth in the Zoning Regulations. Building Permits must be obtained under
applicable law for any verlical construction, and appropriate permits must be
obtained from the State of South Carolina (OCRM) and Army Corps of
Engineers, when applicable, prior to any impact upon freshwater wetlands. It
is specificaily understood that the failure of this Agreement to address a
particular permit, condition, term or restriction does not relieve the Owner, its
successors and assign, of the necessity of complying with the law governing
the permitting requirements, conditions, terms or restiictions, unless
otherwise provided hereunder.

Comprehensive Plan and Development Agreement. The Development
permitted and proposed under the Zoning Regulations and permitted under
this Agreement is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and with current
land use regulations of the County, which include a Planned Development
District for the Property.

Terms for Public Health, Safety and Welfare. The County Council finds
that all issues relating to public health, safety and welfare have been
adequately considered and appropriately dealt with under the terms of this
Agreement, the Zoning Regulations and existing laws

Historical Structures. Any cultural, historical structure or sites will be
addressed through the applicable federal and state permitting process at the

Mdwies Yl 8, 22D



time of development, as required by applicable State regulations. No such
structures or sites are known to exstsexist.

[SEPARATE SIGNATURE PAGES TO FOLLOW]

. 20T 126



IN WITNESS WHEREOQF, the parties hereby set their hands and seals, effective the date
first above written

WITNESSES: SL HARDEEVILLE INDUSTRIAL PARK LLC
By:
Its:
STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA )
) ACKNOWLEDGMENT
COUNTY OF JASPER )
| HEREBY CERTIFY, that on this day of , 2022. before me, the

undersigned Notary Public of the State and County aforesaid, personally appeared the duly
authorized official of . known to me (or satisfactorily proven) to be the

person whose name is subscribed to the within document, who acknowledged the due execution
of the foregoing document.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, | have hereunto set my hand and official seal the day and
year last above mentioned.

Notary Public for South Carolina
My Commission Expires:

(W17



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereby set their hands and seals, effective the date
first above written.

WITNESSES: COUNTY OF JASPER, SOUTH CAROLINA
By:
Its:
STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA )
) ACKNOWLEDGMENT
COUNTY OF JASPER. }
| HEREBY CERTIFY, that on this day of , 2022. before me, the

undersigned Notary Public of the State and County aforesaid, personally appeared
. known to me (or satisfactorily proven) to be the person whose
name is subscribed to the within document, as the appropnate officials of Jasper County, South
Carolina, who acknowledged the due execution of the foregoing document,

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, | have hereunto set my hand and official seal the day and
year last above mentioned.

Notary Public for South Carolina
My Commission Expires:

IR



EXHIBIT A
TO DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT
PROPERTY DESCRIPTION

Being all those certain pieces, parcels, or tracts of land located in Jasper County, South Carolina,
containing .

Mneshd Aol 15, 202200 |



EXHIBIT B
TO DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT
PLANNED DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

The Planned Development District approval for the 95 Logistics Center (the Property
hereunder}, as approved by the County Council on , is hereby incorporated herein by
reference, to include all drawings, plans, narratives and documentation submitted therewith, as fully
as if attached hereto. The parties hereto may elect to physically attach said documents hereto, or
may rely upon the above stated incorporation by reference, at their discretion.

.‘I:-.‘.‘}ﬂ



EXHIBIT C
TO DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT
ZONING REGULATIONS

1. The Jasper County ZemmgDevelopment Ordinance—ae(z) being codified with Municods
and current on Municode” through Supplement Mo 3as of Jupe 212021 as amende
through the date of this Agreemant

et

2. The Planned District Development (PDD) dated and adopled by Jasper County by
Ordinance Number on .

3. This Development Agreement, which shall control in the event of any conflict with the above
referenced Ordinance or PDD- that cannot be resolved pursuant to Aricle |V above.

Mierees 0| LA, 22T | |



EXHIBITD

TO DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT
DEVELOPMENT SCHEDULE

Development of the Property is expected to occur over the 10-year term of the Agreement,
with the sequence and timing of development activity to be dictated largely by market conditions
The following estimate of expected activity is hereby included, to be updated by Owner as the

development evolves over the term:

Year(s) of Commencement / Completion

Type of Development 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026
Site Work Any
Remaining

As stated in the Development Agreement, Section VI, actual development may occur more

rapidly or less rapidly, based on market conditions and final product mix

?ﬂ."}_‘..z




EXHIBIT E

TO DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT
Copy of Ordinance Adopting Development Agreement

(Attached)

Sharchs & ey i



EXHIBITF

TO DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT
1.Storm Water Analysis(Attached)

2. Jasper County shall also be provided with contemporaneous copies of all submissions to

federal and state permitling authorities regarding storm water permitting and Stormwater Pollution
Prevention Plans.

Sedawchet fpedl 13, BOREYY



